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WELCOME TO OUR 2018/2019 ANNUAL REPORT

Welcome to Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire Council’s Annual Report, which provides an account of
the organisation’s performance, activities and other information for the financial year 1 July
2018 to 30 June 2019.
The Annual Report is an important document by which Council is transparently accountable for
its financial and operational performance throughout the year. It contains important
information for all stakeholders (residents, Councillors, staff, community groups, government,
developers/investors and other interested parties) on Council’s operations, achievements,
challenges, culture, purpose and plans for the future. Council is strongly committed to serving
its community and has strived to make this Annual Report accountable and informative in
accordance with legislative requirements.
Copies of this Annual Report can be obtained by contacting the Council Administration Centre
on (07) 40838000 or by visiting Council’s website at www.hopevale.qld.gov.au
We welcome feedback on this report which can be provided in writing to the address below.

Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire Council
1 Muni Street
Hope Vale QLD 4895
Phone:

(07) 40838000

Fax:

(07) 40609331

Website:

www.hopevale.qld.gov.au

Email:

info@hopevale.qld.gov.au
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A MESSAGE FROM OUR ACTING MAYOR AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER
On behalf of all Councillors and the Management Team, we are pleased to present the Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire
Council 2018-2019 Annual Report.
As in previous years, this report again highlights the many initiatives that have been implemented by the Council for
the benefit of the Hope Vale community.
Council has once again managed to balance good corporate governance and prudent financial management whilst
delivering a wide range of social services coupled with constructing, rehabilitating and maintaining a large number
of assets.
This Council places great importance of building and maintaining a financially sustainable organisation that will
continue to serve its residents in the years to come. This will be our legacy to future Hope Vale Councils.
The Council continued to meet a wide range of statutory compliance issues and we are again proud to present a
further unqualified audit from the Queensland Audit Office for the tenth straight year meeting government
requirements.
In line with Council desire to develop strategic framework of decision making on Hope Vale’s future, we have
endorsed the following key planning documents during the 2018/2019 year –
•
Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire Council 2018-2023 Corporate Plan
•
Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire Council Economic Development Strategy 2018-2021
•
Hope Vale Master Plan 2019
These Plans will provide the basis for the “look and feel” of the future Hope Vale. Some of the initiatives in these
plans have already commenced including the major upgrade to Pioneer Hall, the roadworks and carparks in front of
the school, and the new access for Palm Street and carpark at the cemetery.
These “placemaking’ works will continue during 2019-2020 with implementation of the streetscaping/landscaping
plan for Theile Steet and Muni Street, including a major upgrade to both streetlighting and public lighting.
Another highlight for 2018-2019 was the announcement that Hope Vale will benefit from more reliable mobile
phone coverage and better data services, thanks to a new project aimed at closing the digital divide. The
Queensland Government is collaborating with Telstra for delivery of the $2.56 million Hope Vale digital project,
which will see the low-speed radio network link replaced with 25 kilometres of fibre optic cable, offering a boost for
locals and businesses.
Council has been advocating strongly for this project for a number of years.
We would particularly like to thank Hope Vale’s Ministerial Champion Mick de Brenni, Hope Vale’s Government
Champion Lisa Carroll, Director General of the Department of Housing and Public Works, and Telstra CEO Andy Penn
for their personal support and involvement in making this project a reality, hopefully by early 2020.
Council has also significantly increased its involvement in three (3) Regional and State advocacy associations over
recent years – the Queensland Indigenous Leaders Forum (comprising of all Queensland Indigenous Local
Governments), the Torres Cape Indigenous Council Alliance, and the Far North Regional Organisation of Councils.
These three advocacy bodies continue to progress the collective interests of the member local governments. Our
involvement in these forums has directly benefited our community and other indigenous communities through the
provision of local and regional infrastructure program and projects.
Finally, we again wish to acknowledge and thank our Councillors, our Executive Team, our staff, and our contractors
for their dedication, commitment and cooperation in working together to deliver such positive outcomes for the
Hope Vale community.

..
Acting Mayor June Pearson

Chief Executive Officer Steve Linnane
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OUR SHIRE

OUR LOCATION

Hope Vale located 46 km north of Cooktown and 370 km north of
Cairns was established as a Lutheran Mission in 1949. The Aboriginal
people from Hope Valley and Bedford Missions were settled here.
The magnificent land surrounding Hope Vale covers freshwater
springs, palm tree lined rivers and beautiful bright sand dunes. Hope
Vale itself is made of rich red soil. The unique coloured sands near Elim
displays shades of yellow, black and red.
Land in the Shire is made up of parcels that are Deed of Grant in Trust
(DOGIT) tenure under the trusteeship of the Council for the town
designated DOGIT, land under the trusteeship of the Hope Vale
Congress Corporation and small block of freehold. Part of this freehold
block has been subdivided to provide a subdivision for freehold
residential allotments.
DOING BUSINESS IN HOPE VALE
Hope Vale has a range of facilities available to residents and visitors.
These include:
Community: Child Care Centre, Community Justice Group,
Community and Home Support Program (CHSP), PCYC
Education: Kindergarten, Primary School
Facilities: Radio Station (107.7 FM), Conference/Meeting
Rooms, Indigenous Knowledge Centre (Library), Lutheran
Church, SES & Rural Fire Service, Multi Purpose Centre,
Football Field, Aquatic Centre and Airstrip
Health: Hospital – Health Centre, Aged Care Hostel,
Disability Service, Health & Well Being Centre, Men’s Shed
Retail: Supermarket, Service Station, Take Away Food
Outlet, Café, Post Office, Bait & Tackle Shop
Tourism: Art & Culture Centre, Elim Camp Ground
Government Services: Police Station, Centrelink Agency,
Department of Housing & Public Works, My Pathway (Jobs
Centre), Family Responsibility Commission
AREA
110,000 hectares

POPULATION
946 (2016 census)
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OUR COUNCIL

Cr Barry Bowen, Cr Bruce Gibson, Acting Mayor June Pearson, Cr Selina Bowen
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VISION
Our vision is to move from dreaming to reality: through diversity and harmony to achieve a progressive,
united and vibrant region and township

MISSION STATEMENT
Through the practice of good governance and strong leadership, the Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire Council aims to:

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Provide quality services
Be accountable
Provide equitable representation
Drive change
Foster growth
Promote success in a friendly environment
Comply with all legislative statutory requirements
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OUR ELECTED MEMBERS
Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire Council has an elected body of five councillors. These councillors have
specific powers, duties and responsibilities as set out in the Local Government Act and Regulation.
Councillor Portfolio Responsibilities

Mayor Greg McLean – Governance, Disaster Management & Land
v Law & Justice, Council Administration, Disaster Management, Land

Mayor Greg McLean was automatically suspended (with pay) on the 21st May 2018 upon the
implementation of the Local Government Electoral (Implementation of Stage 1 of Belcarra). His
role was undertaken by Deputy Mayor June Pearson who became Acting Mayor from the 21st May
2018.
Acting Mayor June Pearson – Community Well Being

v Health, Church, Aged Care, Disabilities, Housing, Law & Justice, Council Administration,
Disaster Management and Land

Councillor Selina Bowen – Education and Training

v Kindergarten, Child Care, Education, Training and Youth Development

Councillor Bruce Gibson – Infrastructure Services

v Building, Projects, Essential Services, Animal Management & Environmental Health and Civil
Construction (inc. NDRRA)

Councillor Barry Bowen – Economic Development/Sport & Recreation

v Employment, Economic Development and Sport & Recreation
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REMUNERATON TO COUNCILLORS
Remuneration of Councillors is fixed by the Local Government Remuneration Tribunal and reviewed
on an annual basis.
NAME

POSITION

SALARY

SUPERANUATION

EXPENSES
CLAIMED

Gregory McLean

Mayor

$103,918.00

$9,872.14

$0.00

June Pearson

Acting
Mayor

$103,918.00

$9,872.11

$11,666.02

Bruce Gibson

Councillor $51,958.00

$4,935.96

$8,840.00

Selina Bowen

Councillor $51,958.00

$4,935.96

$8,840.00

Barry Bowen

Councillor $51,958.00

$4,935.94

$8,840.00

FACILITIES
PROVIDED

Mobile Phone
Vehicle

MINISTERIAL AND GOVERNMENT CHAMPIONS
The Council is supportive of the initiative of the State Government with its Government (Director
General) Champion and Ministerial Champion program. The Director General of the Department of
Housing and Public Works, Liza Carroll is the Hope Vale Government Champion and has undertaken
a number of visits to Hope Vale since her appointment in August 2015.
The Housing and Public Works Minister and Minister for Sport, Mick de Brenni, is Hope Vale’s
Ministerial Champion. Council is appreciative of this State Government initiative and will continue to
work closely together to support and improve social and economic within Hope Vale with this direct
link to State Cabinet.
COUNCILLORS ATTENDANCE RECORD
Council meetings are generally held on the third Wednesday of each month. A schedule of
meeting dates is adopted by Council at the first Council meeting of the calendar year.
NAME

FULL
COUNCIL
MEETINGS
(Days Attended)

SPECIAL
COUNCIL
MEETINGS
(Days Attended)

TRUSTEE
MEETINGS
(Days
Attended)

TOTAL
MEETINGS
ELIGIBLE TO
ATTEND

TOTAL
MEETINGS
ATTENDED
(Days
Attended)

Gregory Mclean

0

0

0

0

0

June Pearson

12

0

3

15

15
9

Bruce Gibson

11

0

2

15

13

Selina Bowen

12

0

3

15

15

Barry Bowen

12

0

3

15
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OUR PEOPLE
TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT
Council has a commitment to learning and development and supports staff with assistance towards
courses fees and travel to attend study.
EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY
Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire Council has adopted an equal Employment Opportunity Policy.
Recruitment, selection, promotion, transfer and training are dealt with on the basis of equity and
merit, without regards to extraneous factors such as applicant’s sex, age, racial background, religious
or marital status.
The Council is an equal employment opportunity employer which values the wealth of experience
and knowledge of the organisation’s employees. The organisation is committed to promoting
equality in employment opportunity and to developing a diverse workforce which is representative
of the community.

STAFF STATISTICS AT A GLANCE
Summary of Employment by Gender (The data contained in this table is based on self-reporting and
does include councillor numbers).

Females

Males

TOTAL

Permanent

34

33

67

Casual

12

8

20

TOTAL

46

41

87
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & LEGISLATIVE
REQUIREMENTS
The following information provides details required by the Local Government Act 2009 and the Local
Government Regulation 2012.
SENIOR CONTRACT EMPLOYEES
Section 201 of the Local Government Act 2009 requires that the remuneration packages of senior
contract employees employed during this reporting period are reported on.
•
•

2 senior contract employees with a total remuneration package in the range of $200,000$250,000
1 senior contract employees with a total remuneration package in the range of $150,000$200,000

INVITATION TO TENDERER’S TO CHANGE THEIR TENDER
No actions were taken to amend tender specifications after tenders were called.
BENEFICIAL ENTERPRISES
No Beneficial Enterprises were recognised during the 2018/2019 financial year.
SIGNIFICANT BUSINESS ACTIVITIES
Council did not conduct any significant business activities during the financial year.
INVITATIONS TO PROVIDE EXPRESSION OF INTEREST
In May 2019, Council sought submissions from suitably qualified individuals and companies to be
included on its Register of Approved and Pre-qualified Suppliers in the areas of Plant Hire Services
and Trades Services.
INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION
Council’s internal audit function is undertaken by Altius Advisors (Chartered Accountants) with two
(2) reports undertaken during the year. The focus of these internal audits was;
•
•
•
•

to provide a systemic and proactive assessment of the effectiveness and reliability of
Council’s internal controls and processes;
to help ensure that Council is achieving its desired outcomes;
to ensure compliance with legislation, council policy and procedures; and
to identify and document those areas of significant operational risk to council with a view to
finding practical recommendations for improvement.

The focus this year was placed on two (2) areas:
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1. Review the impact of the new accounting standards to ensure compliance.
2. A review of the desktop valuation of property, plant and equipment exercise prior to updating the HVASC asset register.
FRAUD AND CORRUPTION STRATEGIES
Hopevale Aboriginal Shire Council takes our exposure to fraud and corruption seriously and takes
all reasonable measures to control these threats. As part of our fraud risk management regime,
Council developed the Fraud and Corruption Policy and the Fraud and Corruption Prevention
Framework.
This Framework incorporated the following:
• Examples of fraud and corruption
• Risk Management
• Fraud Control
• Internal Audit
• Internal Reporting Systems and Procedures
• Role of Council, Senior Management Team and Council staff
• External Notification and Reporting Systems
• Investigation Processes
• Staff Awareness
• Stakeholder and Community Awareness
To compliment Council’s fraud risk management, a Public Interest Disclosure Policy and a Public
Interest Disclosure Procedure have also been developed. These documents ensure that the
Council establishes and maintains appropriate systems of risk oversight and management, and
that all reasonable measures are in place to prevent, detect and deal with fraud.
The above-mentioned documents are subject ongoing review.
The last review of the Public Interest Disclosure Policy and Procedure was undertaken by Council
on 20 March 2019.
The last review of the Fraud and Corruption Policy and the Prevention Framework was undertaken
on 30 May 2019.

ASSESSMENT OF CORPORATE PLAN AND OPERATIONAL PLAN
Council’s Operational Plan for 2018/2019 was reviewed throughout the year with the majority
of actions completed. Information was fed back to Council through regular management
reports and specific Operational Plan Review reports.
The Outcomes and Strategies outlined in Council’s Corporate Plan 2018-2023 continue to be
successfully implemented.
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GRANTS TO COMMUNITY ORGANISATIONS
Section 189 of the Local Government Regulation 2012 requires Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire
Council to provide a summary of the Council’s expenditure grants for the reporting period.
Council did not provide grants to organisations for this period.
COUNCILLOR EXPENSES REIMBURSEMENT AND FACILITIES POLICY
In accordance with Section 185 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, Council approved
the adoption of the Councillor Expenses Reimbursement and Facilities Policy on 27th February
2019 as required on an annual basis.
The resolution was as follows:
Moved by Cr Barry Bowen

Seconded by Cr Selina Bowen

Resolution:
That
(a) the Finance Director’s report dated 10 January 2019 be received and adopted,
(b) the Internal Audit Report – Review of Impact of new Accounting Standards be noted, and
(c) the following policies attached to the Finance Director’s report be endorsed
Acceptable Requests Guidelines Policy
Advertising Spending Policy
Community Engagement Policy
Community Grants Policy
Debt Policy
Hospitality and Entertainment Policy
Reimbursement of Expenses and Provision of Facilities Policy
General Complaints Process Policy
Investment Policy
Procurement Policy
CARRIED

OVERSEAS TRAVEL
No overseas travel was undertaken by councillors or staff on behalf of Council during the
reporting period.
OTHER RELEVANT ISSUES TO MAKING AN INFORMED DECISION
There are no known issues relevant to making an informed assessment of Council’s
operation and performance in the financial year.
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LIST OF REGISTERS AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC
The following registers are maintained by Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire Council
Name of Register
Register of Interests of a Councillor
Register of Related Party of a Councillor
Register of Electoral Gifts
Register of Delegations
Register of Local Laws
Register of Beneficial Enterprises
Register of Lobbyists
Register of Roads
Contracts Register

CONDUCT AND PERFORMANCE OF COUNCILLORS
Compliance with S186 of the Local Government Regulation 2012 under S186 (e)- (g) the Council
performance against set standards were as follows:
Compliance Requirements for the period 1 July 2018 to 2 December 2018 (former legislation)
Orders and recommendations made under S180 (2) or (4) of the Act

Nil

Orders made under S181 of the Act

Nil

Name of each Councillor for whom on order of recommendation was
made

Nil

A description of the misconduct or inappropriate conduct engaged in
by each Councillor

Nil
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Complaints about the conduct or performance of Councillor’s for
which no further action was take under S176C (2)

Nil

Complaints referred to the Department Chief Executive Officer under
S176C (3) (a)(i)

Nil

Complaints referred to the Mayor under S176C (3) (a) (ii) or (b)(i)

Nil

Complaints referred to the department Chief Executive Officer under
S176C (4) (a)

Nil

Complaints assessed by the Chief Executive Officer as being corrupt
conduct under the Crime and Corruption Act

Nil

Complaints heard by a regional conduct review panel

Nil

Complaints heard by the tribunal

Nil

Complaints to which S176C (6) of the Act applied

Nil

Compliance Requirements for the period 3 December 2018 to 30 June 2019 (current
legislation)
Orders made under section 150I(2) of the Act

Nil

Orders made under section 150AH(1) of the Act

Nil

Decisions, orders and recommendations made under section
150AR(1) of the Act

Nil

Name of each Councillor for whom on order of recommendation was
made

Nil

A description of the unsuitable meeting conduct, inappropriate
conduct or misconduct engaged in by each councillor

Nil

A summary of the decision, order or recommendation made for each
councillor

Nil

Complaints referred to the assessor under section 150P(2)(a) of the
Act: a councillor and the chief executive officer

Nil

Matters, mentioned in section 150(P)(3) of the Act, notifies to the
Crime and Corruption Commission

Nil

Notices given under section 150R(2) of the Act

Nil

Notices given under section 150S(2)(a) of the Act

Nil
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Decisions made under section 150W(a)(b)(d) of the Act

Nil

Referral notices accompanied by a recommendation mentioned in
section 150AC(3))a) of the Act

Nil

Occasions information was given under section 150AF(4)(a) of the
Act

Nil

Occasions the local government asked another entity to investigate,
under chapter 5A, part 3, division 5 of the Act for the local
government, the suspected inappropriate conduct of a councillor

Nil

Applications heard by the conduct tribunal about the alleged
misconduct of a councillor

Nil

ADMINISTRATIVE ACTION COMPLAINTS
There were no complaints under section 187 of the Local Government Regulation 2012. Council
has a Complaints Management Policy in place and a copy is available on our website.
WORK PLACE HEALTH & SAFETY
Council is committed to ensuring employees are provided with the knowledge and resources to self
manage their workplace and lifestyles. There is a high level of awareness by staff of the
requirement to report incidents to ensure appropriate actions can be implemented to reduce the
risk of occurrence of similar incidents to fellow workers.
Council is providing a continuous safety management improvement program to ensure all
workplaces are meeting the requirements under the Work Health & Safety Act and Regulation
2011.
CODE OF CONDUCT
The Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire Council reviewed and updated the Code of Conduct for staff in
November 2018.
The staff code of conduct has been incorporated in the human resources policies and procedures
instructions for council employees and remains the focal point of reference for questions on
ethics for our organisation.
RATES AND CHARGES
In accordance with Section 190(1) (g) of the Local Government Regulation 2012, the annual
report must contain a summary of all concessions for rates and charges granted by the local
government.
During 2018/2019, no concessions were granted.
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CONTROLLED ROADS
The road network controlled and managed by Council is categorised into various classes of road
depending on volumes of traffic, pavement strength and formation width. For the purpose of
this report, the network is represented as follows:
Rural Roads:

100km

Urban Roads:

24km

Total length of Council Road Infrastructure 124km
Given that the size of the local government area, the task to manage Council’s road network is both
significant and challenging. Council commenced a major project during this reporting period to
identify constructed roads in the Shire with a view to ensuring they are dedicated as road reserves.
Council maintains a total of 3 bridges and 13 major culverts on its road transport network.

OUR PERFORMANCE
THE YEAR IN REVIEW
FINANCE and ADMINISTRATION
2018/2019 saw an unqualified audit opinion on Council financial statements and a low financial
sustainability risk. Financial Statements were signed off by the Queensland Audit Office on 31
July 2019.
It is pleasing to note that Council has maintained an eight year average operating surplus and
continues to achieve all measures of Financial Sustainability as determined by the Queensland
Audit Office. Council ensures that its financial management strategy is prudent and that its longterm financial forecast shows a sound financial position.
SOCIAL SERVICES
The Social Services department includes:
The Hope Vale Aged Care Hostel
Commonwealth Home Support Program
Thawuun Disability Support Service
George Bowen Memorial Kindergarten
Nola’s Place Child Care Centre
Youth and Social Support
Indigenous Knowledge Centre
Hopevale Radio Station
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•

•

•
•

•

•

•

•

•

The Hope Vale Aged Care Hostel was re-accredited in August 2018, meeting all four (4)
accreditation standards. Work started with the transitioning to the New Age Care Quality
Standards which comes into effect from the 1 July 2019. Eight (8) standards will need to be met
moving forward. Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire Council purchased a new bus for the facility in early
2019.
The Commonwealth Home Support Program is one consolidated programme that provides
entry-level home support for older people who need assistance to keep living independently at
home and in their community. The service currently has 41 clients and in December 2018
received growth funding from Department of Health. Growth funding enables the sector to
respond to the evolving needs of CHSP clients and to align with the growth in Australia’s
population.
The Thawuun Disability Service ceased operations as of the 30 June 2019. This was due to the
roll out of the National Disabilities Insurance Scheme which began on the 1 July 2018. All clients
have transitioned to the NDIS.
Hope Vale was the first community in the Cape to have a Community Connector that was funded
from the National Disability Insurance Agency. The position started in July 2018 and will
continue until 30 June 2020. The main objective of a Community Connector is to work with
people in Hope Vale with Disabilities to connect them to resources, support and information in
their communities, to help build their knowledge, skills and confidence and guide them through
the access and planning processes for the National Disability Insurance Scheme (NDIS).
Nola’s Place Child Care Centre provides care for children between 0-5 years of age and has a
license capacity for 29 children. It operates from 7:45am to 5:15pm Monday to Thursday and
7:45am to 15:30pm on Friday. The hours of operation for Friday changed in early 2019 to meet
the needs of the working families on Fridays. The service transitioned to the New Child Care
Package from the 2 July 2019. Purchases of new equipment and resources took place in this
financial year to ensure compliance with legislation as well as provide further educational
experiences for the children.
The George Bowen Memorial Kindergarten has 22 enrolments for children between ages of 4 to
5 years in 2019. The 2018 Kindergarten Groups successfully transitioned to Prep at the beginning
of 2019. Council was successful in receiving a ‘Building Our Region” grant which will see the
Kindergarten refurbished and a “Outside of School Hours “building being built on the grounds to
cater for children between the ages of 5 to 12 years of age.
The Hope Vale Youth Engagement Program was refunded for 2019. Two part time officers are
still engaged – Education and Youth Support Officers. Their roles are fundamental in supporting
families and children in going to school, engaging in social and recreational activities, cultural
activities and with further training and employment opportunities. A case management
approach has been implemented to ensure youth are being referred to the appropriate agencies
for support. A Youth Group meets on Wednesday Nights.
The Indigenous Knowledge Centre (IKC) Service is partially funded by State Libraries to provide
library and internet services to the community. Operating hours were changed during this
period to meet the needs of the community - Monday to Thursday from 11:00am to 17:00pm
and Friday from 8:00am to 12 noon. The IKC has been refurbished. Two programs are currently
being delivered from the IKC – Deadly Digital Communities and First Five Forever.
The Hope Vale Radio Station interior refurbishment was completed. Training in Outside
Broadcasting was provided to Hope Vale Radio staff from Bumma Bippera Radio in Cairns. Staff
are now able to utilize the Outside Broadcast Systems for community events in Hope Vale. The
Indigenous Language Program broadcasts have been conducted at the usual time of 10 am on
Thursdays.
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•
•

First Australian Day Ceremony taken place in Hope Vale. Was postponed for 1 week later than
the 26 January 2019 due to the wet weather.
Successful funding applications were granted to provide; NAIDOC, Celebrating Reconciliation,
Aged Friendly and Early Childhood Events.

OPERATIONS
CIVIL
The major projects undertaken by the Civil Construction Group during the year included:
•
•
•

•
•

Finalized all 2017 NDRRA restoration works as a result of the 2017 monsoonal trough.
Commenced 2019 NDRRA restoration works as a result of the 2019 monsoonal trough.
Completed Civil works for a new road connection and cemetery parking between Thiele St
and Palm Close, a new school drop off zone and car park, and a Theile/Muni St Upgrade and
line marking.
Completed a Hope Vale Town Drainage renewal funded under ATSI TIDS valued at
$46,500.00.
Commenced Drainage Upgrade to Reuther Street (industrial area) funded under the LGGSP
program with a total value of $150,000.

BUILDING AND CONSTRUCTION
The major projects undertaken by the Building Construction Group during the year included:
•
•

•

•
•
•

Finalized construction of 4 x 2 bedroom houses on Link Road. The houses were built under
contract with the Department of Housing and Public Works for social housing.
Completed major upgrades, maintenance, modifications, external paints, internal paints, roof
upgrades, laundry upgrades, driveways, footpaths, carports and fencing on social housing for
the Department of Housing and Public Works.
Completed a new road connection and cemetery parking between Thiele St and Palm Close, a
new school drop off zone and car park, and a Theile/Muni St Upgrade and line marking inside
the 2017-2019 Works 4 Queensland (W4Q) program.
Works commenced towards the construction and upgrade of Pioneer Town Hall inside the
2017-2019 Works 4 Queensland (W4Q) program.
Works completed on Theile/Muni St Roundabout under the Roads to Recovery Funding
Program.
Ongoing works under the Indigenous Councils Critical Infrastructure Program 2017-2019. The
projects involve the improvement of the Water and Waste SCADA Reporting System, Hope
Vale Waste Refuse upgrade and expansion, Paddle Stirrer installation at the sewage ponds
and the installation of a Macerator at the primary waste pump station. Inside the financial
year the following ICCIP projects were completed:
o Repair and Replace Flow Meters
o Install Chlorine Automated Dosing System
o Upgrade Sewage Scada Telemetry
o Upgrade Water Scada Telemetry
- 19 -

•
•

Commenced planning and design documentation on the Upgrade of Everlina Bridge funded
under the MIPP@ program.
Commenced works on 2x2 bedroom Houses for Government Education Housing in Hope
Valley Estate.

FUNDING PROGRAMS
Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire Council carries out a variety of services and projects on behalf of the
residents of the shire. At times these activities are funded by federal and state government
grants.
The Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire Council would like to acknowledge the following funding
bodies for activities funded in the 2018/2019 financial year;
STATE GOVERNMENT
Department of Housing, Public Works, Racing and Multicultural Affairs
Department of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Partnerships
Department of Health
Department of Transport and Main Roads
Department of Communities, Child Safety and Disabilities
Queensland Fire and Emergency Services
State Library of Queensland
Department of Education and Training
Queensland Reconstruction Authority
Crèche and Kindergarten Association
COMMONWEALTH GOVERNMENT
Department of Prime Minister and Cabinet (Indigenous Affairs Group)
Department of Health and Ageing
Department of Infrastructure and Regional Development
Department of Education and Training
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2018-2019
Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire Council Community Financial Report

Community Financial Report 2018-2019
The Community Financial Report is a plain English summary of Council’s Financial Statements prepared in accordance with section 179 of the Local
Government Regulation 2012.

1. 2018/2019 Snapshot
Key Highlights of the 2018/2019 financial year include:
•
•
•

Unqualified Audit
Low Risk Sustainability
First Council in Queensland to have the Financial Statements signed off by Queensland Audit Office for seven (7) consecutive years

2. About Council’s End of Year Financial Statements
What you will find in the Financial Statements:
The Audited Financial Statements of Hopevale Aboriginal Shire Council set out the financial performance, financial position, cash flows and the net
wealth of Council for the financial year ended 30 June 2019.
About the Management Certificate:
The Financial Statements must be certified by both the Mayor and the Chief Executive Officer as presented fairly. Hopevale Council’s financial results
for the year are required to be adopted by the Council – ensuring both responsibility for and ownership of the Financial Statements by management
and elected representatives.

About the Financial Statements
The financial statements incorporate 4 primary financial statements and accompanying notes.
1. A Statement of Comprehensive Income
A summary of Hopevale Councils financial performance for the year ending 30 June 2019, listing both regular in come and expenses and other
comprehensive income which records items such as changes in the fair value of Council’s assets and investments.
2. A Balance Sheet
A 30 June 2019 snapshot of Hopevale Council’s Financial Position including its Assets and Liabilities.
3. A Statement of Changes in Equity
This the overall change for the year (in dollars) of Hopevale Council’s “net wealth”.
4. A Statement of Cash Flows
Indicates where Hopevale Council’s cash came from and where it was spent.
5. Notes to the Financial Statements
These provide greater detail to the line numbers of the 4 primary financial statements.

About the Auditors Report
Hopevale Shire Council’s Financial Statements are required to be audited by the Queensland Audit office. The audit of all Queensland Councils is contracted
to Audit firms that specialise in Local Government. The Auditor provides an audit report which gives an opinion on whether the Financial Statements present
the Councils’ financial performance and position fairly.

A complete version of Hopevale Aboriginal Councils 2018-2019 Financial Statements including the sustainability ratio’s can be found at Council’s website:
www.hopevale.qld.gov.au or at Council’s administrative offices at:
1 Muni Street
Hopevale QLD 4895
Or
4/108 Mulgrave Road
Cairns QLD 4870
If you have any questions regarding the financial statements, please contact Shannon Gibbs on (07) 4052 2100.

3. An overview of this years Financial Result and Financial Position
Hopevale Council’s Statement of Comprehensive Income (Profit & Loss) 2018/2019
Hopevale Council's Result
$ '000

Actual

%

Actual

%

Actual

%

2019

2019

2018

2018

2017

2017

Operating Revenue

$20,208

$18,327

$19,617

Capital Revenue

$3,870

$6,764

$3,213

Total Revenue

$24,078

Recurrent Expenditure

$16,256

$17,502

$18,119

Capital Expenditure

$1,791

$5,301

$4,351

Total Expenditure

$18,047

74.95%

$22,803

90.88%

$22,470

98.40%

Operating Surplus/(Deficit)

$6,030

25.04%

$2,287

9.11%

$360

1.60%

Other Comprehensive Income

$1,798

Net Result

$7,828

100.00%

$25,091

100.00%

$6,194
32.51%

$8,482

$22,830

100.00%

$0
33.80%

$360

1.06%

Council’s Revenue Sources for 2018/2019 year

Income

2%

2%

Hopevale Council's Revenue Sources
Actual
$ '000

2019

% of
sub-total

Rates, Levies and Charges

1%
23%

38%

Interest & Investment
Revenue
Grants & Contributions Operating

Income
Rates, Levies and Charges

371

2%

Rental Income

483

2%

Interest & Investment Revenue

346

1%

Grants & Contributions - Operating

5,637

23%

Grants & Contributions - Capital

3,784

16%

Other / Sundry

4,220

18%

Sales

9,151

38%

24,078

100%

Total Income
Expenses
Employee Benefits

4,847

27%

Materials and Services

8,107

45%

4

0%

Depreciation and Amortisation

3,297

18%

Capital Expenditure

1,791

10%

Total Expenses

18,047

100%

Operating Surplus

6,030

Finance Costs

Rental Income

16%

Grants & Contributions Capital
Other / Sundry

18%
Sales

Expenses

Employee Benefits

10%
27%

18%

Materials and
Services
Finance Costs

0%

Depreciation and
Amortisation
Capital Expenses
45%

Councils Statements of Financial Position (Balance Sheet) for 2018/2019

$ '000

Actual
2019

Actual
2018

23,516

19,049

1,384

2,111

1,164
3,730
25,290
532
371
45

648
3,681
25,788
451
314
51

19,102
16,617
2,142

17,815
16,383
1,953

19,878

17,348

(1,706)

(1,353)

The major items that make up Hopevale Council's wealth include the
following assets:
Available Cash & Investments
Debtors
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
- Capital Work in Progress
- Land and Improvements
- Buildings
- Major Plant
- Other Plant and Equipment
- Furniture & Fittings
Infrastructure
- Infrastructure Roads
- Infrastructure Water & Sewerage
- Infrastructure Other
Other Financial Assets
Liabilities
Net Community Equity

112,068

104,239

Council's Capital Expenditure for 2018/2019 by Asset Class
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Buildings Residential
Motor Vehicles and Machinery
Plant & Equipment
Buildings Other
Water Infrastructure
Roads Infrastructure
Other Infrastructure
Furniture & Fittings
Land

Council's Major Projects for 2018/2019
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Housing Driveway Program
Existing Housing Upgrades
Housing Carport Program
Housing Roof Program
Housing Paint Program
NDRRA Infrastructure Road Networks
Housing Maintenance
Sewerage SCADA system
Water SCADA system
Muni Street Roundabout
Palm/Thiele Street Connection
School Parking & Drop Off Zone
Housing Service Connections
Pedestrian Footpath
Works In Progress
- Community Hall Upgrade
- ICCIP Water
- ICCIP Sewerage
- ICCIP Solid Waste
- Multi Purpose Centre
- Reuther Street Drainage

These expenditures have been funded through Cash Reserves, Grants and Contributions and General Revenue. Hopevale Aboriginal Shire Council would like to thank the Commonwealth and
State Governments to their ongoing support to the development of the Hopevale Aboriginal Shire Area.

Councils Key Financial Figures – A Snapshot of the past 5 years lets you see some overall trends:
YE
2019

YE
2018

YE
2017

YE
2016

4,220
371
483
346
9,151

1,020
276
370
229
11,003

947
261
359
207
12,583

1,883
287
405
152
11,943

992
189
332
30
8,543

9,421
24,078

12,194
25,091

8,474
22,830

7,147
21,767

7,208
17,294

4,847
8,107
4
3,297

5,261
9,818
1
2,814
225
4,351
22,470

5,292
7,528
4
2,764

5,362
5,984
10
2,652

1,792
18,048

4,933
8,908
24
3,017
618
5,301
22,803

3,716
19,297

1,127
15,135

Surplus/(Deficit)

6,030

2,287

360

2,470

2,159

Financial Position Figures ($'000)

YE
2018

YE
2018

YE
2017

YE
2016

YE
2015

113,774
1,706
112,068

105,593
1,353
104,239

97,354
1,596
95,757

96,995
1,598
95,397

93,483
1,149
92,333

Cash & Cash Equivalents

22,855

18,348

14,883

11,265

7,631

Total Value of PP&E
Total Accumulated Depreciation
Indicative Remaining Useful Life (as a % of GBV)

68,994
3,297
1

67,085
3,018
1

62,717
2,814
1

64,662
2,764
1

64,477
2,652
1

Financial Performance Figures ($'000)
Inflows:
Sundry/Other
Fees & Charges
Rental Income
Interest Received
Sales Revenue
Grants, Subsidies, Contributions & Donations
- Operating & Capital
Total Income
Outflows:
Employee Benefits
Materials & Services
Finance Costs
Depreciation
Other Expense
Capital Expense
Total Expenses

Total Assets
Total Liabilities
Net Community Assets

YE
2015

4. Financial Sustainability Measures
The Financial Sustainability of Councils continues to be a cornerstone of the Local Government Act and a core responsibility of individual Councils across Queensland.
The Financial Sustainability indicators (in accordance with the Local Government Regulation 2012) that Council must publish are as follows:
1.
2.
3.

Operating Surplus Ratio – Net Result divided by Total Operating Revenue
Asset Sustainability Ratio – Capital Expenditure on Asset Renewals divided by Depreciation Expense
Net Financial Liabilities Ratio – Total Liabilities less Current Assets divided by Total Operating Revenue

Ratio

Operating Surplus Ratio
Asset Sustainability Ratio
Net Financial Liabilities Ratio

Target

Actual
2019

Budget
2020

Yr. 1
2021

Yr. 2
2022

Long Term Financial Plan Projections
Yr. 3
Yr. 4
Yr. 5
Yr. 6
2023
2024
2025
2026

Yr. 7
2027

Yr. 8
2028

0 - 10%
> 90%
< 60%

20%
79%
-115%

3%
101%
-113%

3%
96%
-125%

4%
99%
-137%

5%
102%
-152%

5%
117%
-201%

5%
101%
-215%

4%
107%
-165%

4%
103%
-177%

4%
104%
-189%
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Hope Vale Aborigina l Shire Counci l
Statement of Comp rehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note

2019

2018

$

$

Income
Revenue
Recurrent revenue
Fees and charges

3(a)

370,849

275,664

Rental income

482 ,879

369,676

Interest received

346,440

228,749

Sales revenue

3(b)

9,151 ,134

11,002,739

Sundry revenue

3(c)

1,029,193

1,020,005

11

3,190 ,990

Other income
Grants , subsidies , contributions and donations

4(a)

5,636,866

5,430,326

20,208,35 1

18,327, 160

3,784,874

6,751,933

Capital revenue
Grants . subsidies , contribut ions and donations

4(b)

Capital income

Total income

84,892

12,000

3,869,766

6,763,933

24,078,117

25,091,093

Expenses
Recurrent expenses
Employee benefits

5

(4,847,424)

(4,933,480)

Materials and services

6

(8,107,327)

(8,908,534)

(4 ,366)

(24,285)

Depreciation

13

(3,296 ,774)

(3,017,654)

Other expenses

11

(16,255,890)

(17,502,314)

(1,791,803)

(5,301,045)

(18,047,694)

(22,803 ,360)

6,030,423

2,287,734

1,798,231

6,194,234

Tota l other comprehensive income for the year

1,798,231

6,194,234

Tota l comp rehensive income for the year

7,828,654

8,481,968

Finance costs

Capita l expenses

7

Total expenses

Net result

(618,361)

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclass ified to net result
lncrease/ (decrease ) in asset revaluation surplu s

17

The above statement should be read in conjunc tion with the accompanying notes and Significant Accounting Policies .
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Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire Counci l
Statement of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2019

Note

2019

2018

$

$

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

8

22,855,187

18,348,484

Trade and other receivables

9

1,037 ,639

1,818,945

Other assets

10

347,066

291,910

Inventories
Other financial assets

11

Non-current assets held for sale

12

Total current assets

669

669

660,490

650,649

24,901,051

21,110,656

24,901,051

21,159,305

48,649

Non-current assets

Other financial assets

11

19,878,742

17,348,242

Property, plant and equipment

13

68,994,533

67,085,160

88,873,275

84,433,402

113,774,325

105,592,707

Total non-current assets
Total assets
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

15

1,228,327

923,606

Provisions

16

269,264

267,035

1,497,592

1,190,640

Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Provisions

16

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Net community assets
Community equity
Asset revaluation surplus

17

Retained surplus
Total community equity

3,000

3,000

205,716

159,703

208,716

162,703

1,706,307

1,353,343

112,068,018

104,239,364

46 ,689 ,796

44,891,565

65,378,222

59,347,799

112,068,018

104,239,364

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Significant Accounting Policies.
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Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire Council
Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2019
Asset
revaluation
surplus
Note

Total

$

$

17

$

Balance as at 1 July 2018

Retained
surplus

44,891,564

Net result

59,347,799

104,239 ,364

6,030 ,423

6,030,423

Increase in asset revaluation surplus

1,798,231

Total comprehensive income for the year

1,798,231

6,030,423

7,828 ,654

Balance as at 30 June 2019

46,689,794

65,378,222

112,068,018

Balance as at 1 July 2017

38,697,331

57,060,065

95,757,396

2,287 ,734

2,287,734

Net resu lt

1,798,231

Increase in asset revaluation surplus

6,194,234

Total comprehensive income for the year

6,194,234

2,287,734

8,481 ,968

44,891,564

59,347 ,799

104.239,364

Balance as at 30 June 2018

6,194,234

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompany ing notes and Significant Accounting Policies _
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Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire Counci l
Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2019
Note

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers and employees
Interest received
Rental income
Net cash inflow from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property , plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment
Finance lease receipts
Grants , subsidies , contributions and donations
Net cash outflow from investing activities

22

11
4(b)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents held
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year

8

2019
$

2018
$

18,350,469
(14,096,930)
4,253,539
346,440
482,879
5,082,858

23,091,587
~20,560,021)
2,531 ,566
228 ,749
369,676
3,129,991

(5,180,848)
169,170
650,649
3,784 ,874
(576,155}

(6,393,085)
12,000
631 ,482
6,085 ,357
335 ,754

4,506,703

3,465,745

18,348,484

14,882,739

22,855 ,187

18,348 ,484

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Significant Accounting
Policies .
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Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019
1

Significant accounting

1.A

Basis of preparation

policies

These general purpose financial statements are for the period 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019 and have been prepared in compliance
with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2009 and the Local Government Regulation 2012. Consequently , these
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all Australian Accounting Standards , Australian Accounting
Interpretations and other authoritative pronouncemen ts issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board. Because the
Council is a not-for-profit entity and the Australian Accounting Standards include requirements for not-for-profit entities which are
inconsistent with Internationa l Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), to the extent these inconsistencies are applied, these
financial statements do not comply with IFRS. The main impacts are the offsetting of revaluation and impairment gains and losses
within a class of assets, and the timing of the recognition of non-reciprocal grant revenue.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain current and non-current
assets which are measured at fair value.
The Council uses the Australian dollar as its functional currency and its presentation currency and rounds to the nearest dollar.

Recurrent/capital classification
Revenue and expenditure are presented as "recurrent" or "cap ital" in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on the fo llowing
basis:
Capital Revenue includes grants and subsidies received which are tied to specific projects for the replacement or upgrade of
existing non-current assets and/or investment in new assets . It also includes non-cash contributions which are usually buildings or
infrastructure assets.
Capital Expenses includes the impairment of property , plant and equipment.
The following tra nsactions are classified as either "Capital Income" or "Capital Expenses" depending on whether they result in
accounting gains or losses:
- disposal of non-current assets
All other revenue and expenses have been classified as "recurrent".
1.8

Constitution
The Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire Council is constituted under the Queensland Local Government Act 2009 and is domiciled in
Australia.

1.C

Date of authorisation
The fina ncial statements were authorised for issue on the date they were submitted to the Auditor-General for final signature . This
is the date the management certificate is signed.
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Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019
1.D

New and revised Accounting

Standards

This year Council has applied AASB 9 Financial Instruments for the first time. AASB 9 replaces AASB 139 and relates to the
recognition, classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities . Implementing AASB 9 has not resulted in a
material change to the way Council calculates impairment provisions , which are now based on expected credit losses instead of
incurred credit losses .
Council has not restated comparative figures as the impact as at 30 June 2018 would not be material.
On 1 July 2018 (the date of initial application), Council re-assessed the classification , measurement category and carrying amount
of each financial instrument (listed below) in accordance with AASB 9. There were some changes to classification , but this did not
result in changes to measurement categories (listed below) . Carrying amounts were also unchanged .

Measurement category
(unchanged)
Amortised cost
Amort ised cost
Fair value

Financial asseUliability
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Other financial asse ts

Some Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations have been issued but are not yet effective . Those standards have not
been app lied in these financial statements. Council will implement them when they are effective . The standards that may have a
material impact upon council's future financial statements are:
Standard and impact

Date Council will apply
the standard

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities
and AASB 2016-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards -Australian Implementation
Guidance for Not-for-Profit Entities
AASB 1058 clarifies and simplifies the income recognition requirements that apply to not-to-profit (NFP)
entities, in conjunction with AASB 15, and AASB 2016-8 . These Standards supersede the majority of
income recognit ion requiremen ts relating to public sector NFP entities, previously in AASB 1004
Contributions.

1-Jul- 19

Identifiable impacts at the date of this report are:
Some grants received by the Council will be recognised as a liability , and subsequently recognised progressively as revenue as
the Council satisfies its performance obligations under the grant. At present , such grants are recognised as revenue upfront.

Grants that are not enforceable and/or not sufficiently specific will not qualify for deferral, and continue to be recognised as
revenue as soon as they are controlled . Council receives several grants from the Federal Government and State Government for
which there are no sufficiently specific performance obligations these are expected to continue being recognised as revenue
upfront assuming no change to the current grant arrangements.
Council has identified that certain grants received during the 2018/ 19 financial year wou ld require recognition in accordance with
AASB 15. Based on Councils assessment, if Council had adopted the new standards in the current financial year it would have
had the following impacts:
$

Recurrent grants for deferral

(59,275)

Capital grants for deferral

(1,854,882)

Capital grants receivable

473,698

- Revenue decrease of $1,914 ,157 due to deferral of grant funding and an increase of $473 ,698 due to revenue receivab le
resulting in a net decrease of $1,440,459 (based on the facts available to Council at the date of assessment) .
- There would be an equal reduction in the reported equity as the reduced revenue will require an increase in recognition of
contract liabilities and statutory receivables .
- Net result would be lower on initial application as a result of decrea sed revenue .
A range of new disclosures will also be required by the new standards in respect of the Council 's revenue.
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Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019
Transition method
The Council intends to apply AASB 15, AASB 1058 and AASB 2016-8 initially on 1 July 2019, using the
retrospective approach . The recognition and measurement principles of the standards will be
retrospectively applied for the current year and prior year comparatives as though the standards had
always applied, consistent with AASB 108 Accounting Policies , Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors.
The Council intends to apply the practical expedients available for the full retrospective method. Where
revenue has been recognised in full under AASB 1004, prior to 1 July 2019, but where AASB 1058 would
have required income to be recognised beyond that date, no adjustment is required . Further, Council is
not required to restate income for completed contracts that start and complete within a financial year.
This means where income under AASB 1004 was recognised in the comparative financial year (i.e.
2018/19) . these also do not require restatement.
AASB 16 Leases
The Council has assessed the impacts of the new standard that initial application of AASB 16 will have
on its financial statements, however, the actual impacts may differ as the new accounting policies are
subject to change until the Council presents its first financial statements that include the date of initial
application.

AASB 16 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises
a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its
obligation to make lease payments. There are recognition exemptions for short-tenm leases and leases
of low-value items . Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard - i.e. lessors continue to
classify leases as finance or operating leases.
Leases in which the Council is a lessee
The Council currently has a lease contract with Natren Pty Ltd for the lease on the Hope Vale Cairns
office . The lease expires on 23 November 2020.
Previously, the Council has recognised an operating lease expense on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease, and recognised. assets and liabilities only to the extent that there was a timing difference
between actual lease payments and the expense recognised
The right-of use asset and corresponding liability have been quantified and are not material. No
adjustment is necessary .
Leases in which the Council is a lessor
No significant impact is expected for other leases in which the Council is a lessor.
Peppercorn Leases
Council is the leasee of a number of Deed of Grant in Trust leases, for which no or little lease payments
are made. These have been identified as peppercorn leases which are currently not recognised in
Council's financial statements. Council does not intend to elect not to apply the fair value measurement
requirements to these leases until such time as this requirement is mandated.
Transition method
Council has assessed that, as a result of the application of AASB 16, there will be no material impact on
1 July 2019. Therefore there will be no adjustment on initial application.
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Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019
1.E

Critical accounting judgements

and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of Council's accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates . The estimates and ongoing assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in future periods as relevant.

Judgements, estimates and assumptions that have a potential significant effect are outlined in the following financial statement
notes:
Valuation and depreciation of property, plant and equipmentProvisions - Note 16
Valuation of finance leases - Note 11
Non-current assets held for sale - Note 12
Contingent liabilities - Note 19
1.F

Note 13 and Note 14

Financial assets and financial liabilities
Council recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its Statement of Financial Position when, and only when, Council
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Council has categorised and measured the financial assets and financial liabilities held at balance date as follows:
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - measured at amortised cost (Note 8)
Receivables - measured at amortised cost (Note 9)
Other financial assets (finance leases) - measured at fair value (Note 11)
Financial liabilities
Payables - measured at amortised cost (Note 15)
Financial assets and financial liabilities are presented separately from each other and offsetting has not been applied .

1.G

Leases
Leases of property under which the Council as lessor transfers substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of
the asset, but not the legal ownership, are classified as finance leases. Other leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits
remain with the lessor , are classified as operating leases.
Operating leases
Payments made under operating leases are expensed in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased property.

1.H

Taxation
Income of local authorities and public authorities is exempt from Commonwealth taxation. Council is subject to Fringe Benefits Tax
and Goods and Services Tax ('GST'). The net amount of GST recoverable from the ATO or payable to the ATO is shown as an
asset or liability respectively.
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Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire Council
Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019
2. Analysis of results by function
2 (a)

Components of Council functions
The activities relating to the Council's components reported on in Note 2(b) are as follows :

Corporate governance
The objective of corporate governance is for Council to be open, accountable, transparent and deliver value for
money community outcomes. This function includes strategic and operational planning, risk management, legal and
administrative support. The Mayor , Councillors and Chief Executive Officer are included in corporate governance.
Finance and information
Finance and information provides professional finance and information services across all of council. This function
includes internal audit, budget support, financial accounting, the taxation unit, marketing and communication and
information technology services . The goal of this function is to provide accurate, timely and appropriate information
to support sound decision making and meet statutory requirements.
Community services
The goal of community services is to ensure Hope Vale is a healthy, vibrant, contemporary and connected
community. Community services provides well managed and maintained community facilities, and ensures the
effective delivery of cultural , health, welfare, environmental and recreational services.
This function includes :
Indigenous Learning Centre
Environmental Health
Animal Management Program
Childcare Centre
Aged Care
Disability Services
Radio Station

HACC Program
The objectives of the HACC Program are to provide a comprehensive, coordinated and integrated range of basic
maintenance, support and care service for elderly residents of the Hope Vale Community .
Enterprises
This component of Council relates to the provision of the following business services:
Leases over council owned buildings to generate own source revenue.
Infrastructure water and sewerage
Providing water supply and sewerage services.
The goal of this program is to support a healthy, safe community through sustainable water services and to protect
and supports the health of our community by sustainably managing sewerage infrastructure. This function includes
all activities relating to water including flood and waterways management.
Housing
This component of Council relates to the provision of public housing within the DOGIT area.
Infrastructure roads
This component of Council relates to providing and maintaining roads and drainage.
The objective of the transport infrastructure program is to ensure the community is serviced by a quality and
effective road network. The function provides and maintains transport infrastructure , including the maintenance and
provision of the drainage network.
Land
This component of Council relates to the administration and management of freehold land for the potential of home
ownership for community residents and agricultural leases.
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Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire Council
Notes to the financial statements
jfor the year ended 30 June 2019
2
2 (b)

Analys is of results by function
Income and expenses doflnod between recurring and capital are attributed to the following functions:
Year ended 30 Ju ne 2019
Functions

Gross oroc ram income
Recurrent

Corporategovernance

Net result
fromrecurrent
operations

Net
Result

Assets

Other

Granls

Olher

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

-

604,450

510,346

-

510,346

94,104

94,104

52,573

84,892

6,543,960

5,497,863

-

5,497,863

961 ,205

1,046 ,098

24,283,424

-

4,535,720

3,712,625

54,500

3,767,125

(782,794)

768,595

24,924,789

512,969

444,639

444,639

68,330.41

68,330

500,434

-

473,921

222,044

222,044

251,877

251,877

2,421,501

159,977

499,2 12

(339,234)

16,929,275

-

8,734 ,973

5,323,618

712,528

6,036 ,146

3,411,355

2,698,827

22,558,616

-

2,512,146

45,544

1,024,775

1,070,319

447,594

1,441,827

18,373,711

84,892

24,078,117

6,030,423

113,774,324

-

604,450

3,932 ,959

Communityservices

1,946 ,065

983,766

1,605,889

-

512 ,969

Enterprises

473,921

-

Infrastructure water and sewerage
Housing

159,977

8,734,973
47 ,273

445,865

2,019 ,008

-

Land
Tolal

Tota l
expenses

2019

2,526, 109

lnfrastruclure roads

Gross orooramexoenses
Recurronl
Capital

Grants

Finance and lnrormallon

HACC Program

Total
income

Capilal

5,636,866

14,571,484

Year ended 30June_?_018
Functions

3,784,874

-

Total
income

Gross oroaramincome
Recurrent

Capita l

499,212

(499 ,212)

16,255,890

1,791,803

Gmss orooramexoenses
Recurrent
Capital

18,047,6 93

3,952,460

Total

Net result

expenses

frornrecurrent

3,730,000

Net
Result

As sets

opernlions

Corporale governance

Grants

Other

Grants

Other

2018

2018

2018

2018

2018

2018

2018

2018

2018

2018

2018

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

-

563,118

Finance and infom1alion

2,457,278

612 ,816

1,947,078

Cornmunlly services

1,896,582

874 ,815

929,400

HACC Program
Enlerprlses

478 ,348

-

-

395,981

-

10,651 ,892

82,922

361,330

3,174,683

Infrastructure water and sewerage
Housing

lnrrastructureroads

617,850

35,000

-

Land
Total

5,430,326

12,896,833

12,000

-

563,118

540,130

5,029,172

6,137,614

3,700,797

3,417,629

478,348

506,441

395,981

202,085

12,000

-

540,130

22,988

(646,232)

506,4 41

(28,092)

(28,092)

506,529

202,085

193,896

193 ,896

2,616,320

505,770
1,180,790

7,355 ,381

4,477,301

3,57 1,013

18,054

4,120,255

4,138,310

378,275

25,091,093

17,502,314
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505,770

5,301,045

20,502,550

3,417,6 29

6,174,591

-

68,671

(1,108,441)

(3,067,520)

617,850

-

22,988

6,137,614

10,734,814

6,751,933

-

22,803,360

(505,770)

283,167

112,080

16,724,6 38

3,379,433

20,353,946

(567,29 6)

824,845

23,274 ,935

17,815,115
3,730,000

2,287,734

105,592,707

Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire Council
Notes to the financia l statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019
Note
3

2019

2018

$

$

Revenue analysis

(a) Fees and charges
Utility charges
Childcare
Other fees and charges

283,166
72,283
15,400
370,849

242,328
15,771
17,565
275,664

Fees, levies, grants and other revenue are recognised as revenue on receipt of funds or earlier upon unconditional entitlement to the
funds.

(b) Sales revenue
Sale of services
Contract and recoverable works
Total sales revenue

9,151.134
9.151.134

11,002,739
11,002.739

The amount recognised as revenue for contract and recoverable works revenue during the financial year is the amount receivable in
respect of invoices issued during the period . The contrac t work carried out is not subject to retentions.
The Council generates revenues from a number of services including construction income and contracts for road and earthworks .
Revenue from contracts and recoverable works generally comprises a recoupmen t of material costs together with an hourly charge for
use of equipment and employees . Contract revenue and associated costs are recognis ed by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract activity at the report ing date. Revenue is measu red at the fair value of consideration received or receivable in relation to that
activity . Where consideration is received fo r the service in advance it is included in other liabilities and is recognised as revenue in the
period when the service is performed.

(c) Sundry revenue
Cape Flattery Mine contr ibution
Aged persons hostel
Other

50,000
861,483
117.710
1,029.193

50,000
783,009
186,996
1,020.005

Sundry revenue consists mainly of income relating to the Aged Persons' Hostel and contributions from Cape Flattery Mines . Sundry
revenue is recognised with reference to the period to which the income relates.

4

Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations

(a) Recurrent
State government subsidies and grants
Commonweal th governmen t subsidies and grants

(b) Capital
State government subsidies and grants
Commonwea lth government subsidies and grants
Non-cash grant (donated assets)

4,950, 154
686,713
5,636.866

4,762,896
667,430
5.430.326

3,736,534
48,340

6,085,355

3.784.874
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666,578
6,751.933

Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire Council
Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

4

2019

2018

$

$

Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations (Continued)
Grants , subsidies and contributions that are non-reciprocal in nature are recognised as revenue in the year in which Council obtains
control over them.
Where grants are received that are reciprocal in nature , revenue is recognised as the various performance obligations under the funding
agreement are fulfilled. Council does not currently have any reciprocal grants .

Conditions over contributions
Contributions recognised as income during the reporting period and which were obtained on the condition that they be expended in a
manner specified by the contributor but had not been expended at the reporting date:
Non-reciprocal grants for recurrent expenditure
833,796
319,602
Non-reciprocal grants for capital expenditure
1,333,411
528,853
1,362,649
1,653,013
Contributions recognised as income during a previous reporting period that were obtained in respect of the current reporting period:
Non-reciprocal grants for expenditure on services and infrastructure
1,362,649
324,641
1,362,649
324,641

5

Employee benefits
Total staff wages and salaries
Councillors' remuneration
Superannuation

20

Less: Capitalised employee expenses

4,628 ,607
382,227
514,391
5,525,224
(677,801)
4,847.424

4,595,857
342,734
528,157
5,466,748
(533,268)
4.933.480

Councillor remuneration represents salary , superannuation and other allowances paid in respect of carrying out their duties.
Total Council employees at the reporting date:
Elected members
Administration staff
Depot and outdoors staff
Total Council employees at the reporting date
6

2019

2018
5
13
69
87

5
15
71
91

97,683
61,000
72,540
156,736
65,914
271,277
186,606
342,042
1,161,425
155,116
111,763
210,936
364,826
369,339
3,972,507
303,838
98,157
105,622
8,107.327

100,803
65,000
87,480
138,553
52,800
268,365
217,631
187,006
2,928,478
300,354
140,338
183,189
128,348
455,962
3,209,324
229,215
50,978
164,710
8.908,534

Materials and services
Administration supplies and consumables
Audit of annual financial statements by the Auditor-General of Queensland
Accounting services and internal audit
Consultancy
Contractors
Communications and IT expenses
Electricity
Freight
Housing construction cost of sales
Insurance
Motor vehicle expenses
NDRRA/Roads
Other materials and services
Repairs and maintenance - plant and equipment
Repairs and maintenance - housing
Repairs and maintenance - buildings
Subscriptions and registration fees
Travel expenses
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

7

2019

2018

$

$

Capital expenses
Loss on transfer of assets via finance lease
Work in progress value written off
Book value of property, plant and equipment transferred

712,528

1,180,790

712 ,528

1,180,790

In the 2014/15 and 2017/18 financial years, new finance lease agreements were signed into with the Department of Housing and Public
Works for 40 year lease housing assets and an initial recognition of finance leases was reported . Some of the houses included in the
lease were still to be constructed at the date agreement was signed. As Council had a signed agreement in place, and the Department
commenced lease payments for these properties , the lease receivable was recognised as at 30 June 2015 and 30 June 2018. A
number of these properties have been constructed and the cost of the construction has been written off as a capital expense during the
years ended 30 June 2018 and 2019.

Loss on disposal and write off of non-current assets

8

Buildings
Infrastructure roads

54,500
1,024,775
1,079 ,275

4,120,255
4 ,120,255

Total capital expenses

1,791 .803

5,301.045

8,498,331
14,356,857
22.855 .187

9,311 ,993
9,036 ,491
18.348.484

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and on hand
Deposits at call
Balance per Statement of Cash Flows

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, all cash and cheques receipted but not banked at the year end , deposits held at call
with financial institutions and bank overdrafts.
Cash and deposits at call are held in the ANZ and West pac Banks in normal cash deposits and business cheque accounts . Deposits
are held with the Queensland Treasury Corporation in normal deposit at call accounts .
The Council may be exposed to credit risk through its investments in the QTC Cash Fund or other financial institutions in Australia. The
QTC Cash Fund is an asset management portfolio that invests with a wide range of high credit rated counterparties . Deposits with the
OTC Cash Fund are capital guaranteed. Other bank accounts are held with financial institutions , which are rated AA- based on rating
agency Fitch Ratings, and whilst not capital guaranteed , the likelihood of a credit failure is assessed as remote. All investments are
required to have a minimum credit rating of "A-" , therefore the likelihood of the counterparty having capacity to meet its financial
commitments is strong .
The Council manages its exposure to liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash deposits and undrawn facilities , both short and long
term, to cater for unexpected volatility in cash flows. The following lines of credit were available at the end of the reporting period:
ANZ vehicle lease overdraft facility
Available at 30 June

500,000
500,000

500,000
500,000

Council's cash and cash equivalents are subject to a number of external restrictions that limit amounts available for discretionary or
future use. Externally impo sed expenditure restrictions at the reporting date are disclosed in Note 4.
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Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire Council
Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019
Note
9

2019
$

2018
$

Trade and other receivables

990,876
98,254
(61,419)
9,928
1.037,639

Trade debtors
Other debtors
Less impairment
Tax receivable

1,826,585
50 ,045
(57,685)
1.818.945

Trade receivables are recognised at the amounts due at the time of sale or service delivery i.e. the agreed purchase price/ contract
price. Settlement of these amounts is required within 30 days from invoice date .
All known bad debts were written-off at 30 June. The Council reveiws all individual debtor balances on a case by case basis to assess
the expected losses over the lifetime of the balance .
The effect of initially applying AASB 9 on the Council's financial instrume nts is described in Note 1.D. Comparative information has not
been restated to reflect the requirements as there is no material impact.
No interest is charged on trade and other receivables.
Movement in accumulated impairment losses (other debtors) is as follows:
Opening balance at 1 July
Movement on provision for impairment
Closing balance at 30 June

57,685
3,734
61.419

34,092
23.593
57.685

Council assesses the credit risk before providing goods or services and applies normal business credit protection procedures to
minimise the risk.
By the nature of the Council's operations, the re is a geographical concentration of risk in respect of receivables in the Council's area.
Ageing of past due receivables and the amount of any impairment is disclosed in the following table :

2019
624,374
224,329
(1,852)
242.279
(61,419)
1.027.711

Not past due
Past due 31-60 days
Past due 61-90 days
More than 90 days
Impaired
Total

2018
1,678,323
7,539
(2,157)
192,925
(57,685)
1.818.945

A summary of the Council's exposure to credit risk for trade receivab les is as follows :

2019

2019

Not creditimpaired

Creditimpaired

624,374
224,329
(1,852)
180,860
1,027.711

Not past due
Past due 31-60 days
Past due 61-90 days
More than 90 days
Total gross carrying amount
Loss allowance

1,027.711
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61,419
61.419
(61,419)

Hope Vale Aborigina l Shire Council
Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

10 Other assets
Prepayments

2019

2018

$

$

347,066
347,066

291,910
291,910

660,490
660.490

650,649
650.649

19,878,742
19,878,742

17,348,242
17,348.242

660,490
2,641,960
18,583,951
21,886,401
11,610,733
{12,957,902)
20,539.232

650,649
2,602,594
18,957,696
22,210 ,939
12,262,682
(16,474,731)
17,998.890

660,490
2,615 ,750
17,262,992
20,539,232

650,649
2,518,503
14,829,738
17.998.890

17,998 ,890

18,623,626
625,107
(631,482)
{618,361)
17,998.890

11 Other financial assets
Current
Finance leases
Non-current
Finance leases

A reconciliation between the gross investment in the lease and the fair value of lease
payments is as follows :
Gross minimum lease payments receivable:
Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than five years
Later than five years
Add: Estimated contingent rent
Less: Present value adjustment
Fair value of lease payments
The fair value of lease payments is receivable as follows :
Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than five years
Later than five years

Movements in finance leases were as follows:
Opening balance
Add: Initial recognition of new leases
Less: Lease receipts
(Loss)/Gain on revaluation
Closing balance

(650,649)
3,190,990
20,539.231

Leases of property under which the Council as lessor transfers substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of the
asset, but not the legal ownership , are classified as finance leases .
Council has leased 202 dwellings as lessor to the Queensland Government for 40 years . The total lease payment per dwelling in the
current year ranged between $2,842 and $3,297 ($2,800 and $3,231 for 2017-18). These lease payments are required to be adjusted
each year by the change in the Consumer Price Index (All Groups) for Brisbane . As the gross lease payments are insufficient to cover
the fair value (current replacement cost) of the leased properties , there is no interest rate implicit in the leases and therefore no finance
income will arise from the leases . Consequently, the leases are recognised at the present value of the expected future lease payments
receivable (fair value).
The calculation of fair value has included an estimate of average annual CPI increases of 2.5% (2018: 2.5%) and a discount rate of

2.91% (2018: 3.86%).
Finance leases are to the State of Queensland , represented by the Department of Housing and Public Works . The likelihood of this
counterparty not having capacity to meet its financial commitments is considered low.
Movements on revaluation of finance lease assets are recognised as other income/expenses .
There is nil unearned finance income, unguaranteed residual values accruing to the benefit of Counci l or accumulated allowance for
uncollectible minimum lease payments receivable recognised as income applicable to the leases .
Other leases , where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the lessor, are classified as operating leases.
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Notes to the financial statemen ts
for the year ended 30 June 2019
2019

2018

$

$

12 Non-current assets classified as held for sale
Developed lots on Hope Valley Estate land available for immediate sale

48,649
48,649

There has been no land sold during the current year end there is no expectation of sales for the year ended 30 June 2020. On this
basis, all land has been included as a non current asset.
In prior years, land has been valued at the lower of carrying value and fair value less cost to sell.
Items of property , plant and equipment are reclassified as non-current assets as held for sale when the carrying amount of these assets
will be recovered principally through a sales transaction rather than continuing use. Non-current assets classified as held for sale are
available for immediate sale in their present condition and management believe the sale is highly probable. Non-current assets held for
sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell and are not depreciated. On the eventual sale of
these assets a gain or loss is recognised .
Note 14 describes the valuation techniques that were used to determine the fair value of the land. which is categorised as a level 2
valuation.
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13

Property, plant and equipment

30 Jun e 2019

Basis of measurelllen t
Asset values
Opening gross value as at 1 July 2018
Additions
Disposals
Movement on assets classified as held for sale
Revaluation adjustment to asset revaluation surplus
Writ e-off of assets
Assets transferred from work in progress
Closlng gross value as at 30 June 2019
Accumulated deprecia tion and Impairment
Open ing balance as at 1 July 2018
Depreciation provided in period
Depreciation on disposals
Revaluation adj ustment to asset revaluation surplus
Write -off of asse ts
Acc umulated depreciation as at 30 June 2019
Book value as at 30 June 2019
Residual value
Range of estimated useful life In years

Note

Land and
improvemen ts

Buildings Other

Buildings Residential

Fair Value

Fair Value
$
33 818 ,721
.
.
.
1,016,490

Fair Value

$

3 681 351

.

12
17
7

.
48,649

.
.
.

3 730 000

"
"

3 730 000
3,730 ,000
Land: Not
depreciated.

.
.

.

Fair Value
$

27 604 884

.

Infrastructure
Water&
Sewerage
Fair Value
$
25,303 864
.

Infrastructure Motor Vehicles /
Other
Heavy
Machinery
Fair Value
$
3 621 130
.

.
.

.

.

771, 328

.
.
117 ,925

.

.
.

3 457 337

115 852

10 131 06 2
1169,257

1,255 108
138 664

57 832
13 200

9,789 417
902 767

8 921 273
656 ,49 5

1,667 978
163 633

.
.
71,032

321,115
112 904
11,126 ,203

287,333
.
9,865,101

54,607

19 102 689
.

16 617171
.

101 ,096

.
.

.

.
"

42,298

.

11,638,9 82

1,436 ,070

23 269 534

2 021,267
.

44 820

15- 50

10- 40

4

!

!

!

.

.

"

"

"

.

20 - 50

.
407,080
26 482 272

289 352
4 028 407

.

Cost
$
3 057 464
336 714
/751,385)
.

.

73 304
34 908 515

338,663
.
.

3 356 241
.
.

Cost
$
109 039
6 813
.

Infrastructure
Roads

835,407
(911,872)
2 700 472
30 228 891

"

17
7

$

Fixtures &
Fittings

"

532 002

.

!

!

"

.

1,074 841
74 477
(17 754)
.
.
1,131,564

2 142 189

"

3-10

Cost
$
648 163
4,698 757
"

.
.

.

2 606 913
178 281
(674,403)
.
2,110,791

Work in
progress

.

1 502 246

.

20-50

Cost
$
1 388 731
138 565
(25 ,050)

2 642 793

1,886,218

5- 80

Plant &
Equipment

370 682
.
2-25

(712 ,528)
/3 470,208
1 164 184

"

.
.
"

.
1 164 184
.
Work in
progress: Not
depreciated.

Total

$

102 589 586
5 180 849
(776435
48,649
2,842,246
(1,624,400)
.
108 260 495

35 504 426
3 296 774
(692 157)
1,044,016
112 904
39,265,962
68 994 533
3,730,000

Addit ions comprise:

J
Renewa ls

144,887

!
1,854,772

387,226

20,500

!

!
2,407 ,385

Total other additions

2,773,464

Total additions

6.J!Q,849
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13

Prop ert y, plant and equipment

(continued)

30 June 2018

Basis of measurement
Asset values
Opening gross value as at 1 July 2017
Additions
Disposals
Revaluation adjustm ent to asset revaluation surplus
Transfer of assets between classes
Write-off of assets
Movement on assets classified as held for sale
Assets transferred from work in progress
Closing gross value as at 30 June 2018
Accumulated depreciation and Impairment
Opening balance as at 1 Jt1ly 2017
Depreciation provided in period
Depreciation on disposals
Revaluation adjustment to asset revaluation surplus
Write-off of ass ets
Transfer of assets between classes
Accumulated depreciation as at 30 June 2018

Note

Land and
improvements

Buildings Other

Buildings Residential

Fixtures &
Fillings

Infrastructure
Roads

Infrastructure
Water&
Sewerage

Fair Value

Fair Value
$

Fair Value
$

Cost
$

Fair Value
$

Fair Value

$

3 999 083

-

-

7

17

(377 000)

30 842,418
1170 896

3 178 864

1 315 ,252

-

-

12

59,268

3 681 351

-

7

17

-

7

490 155
33 818 721

10 152,395
938,803

2 410,865

-

19 020

-

996 429
111 033

-

-

(960 136)

147,646

-

-

-

Fair Value

3 191 468
268 349

-

-

975 610

343 573
(189,760)

-

(4,413,889)

-

3356241

24 324 751

-

-

177 377

7

-

-

-

26,548 626
3 053 879

90 019

Infrastructure Motor Vehicles /
Other
Heavy
Machine,y

3 503
25 303 864

7 500
3621130

44 137
12 454

9 202 062
919 181

8 940 351
614 676

1 412 949
150 407

(1,368)

(38,193)
(293,633)

-

10,131,062

1,255,108

2 609
57,832

23,687,659

2,101,133

51,208

Book value as at 30 June 2018

3,681,351

Residual value
Range of estimated useful life in years

3,681,351

-

-

Land: Not
deprec iated,

15- 50

10 -4 0

4

1

1

-

(633,754)

-

9,789,417

17,815,467

Cost
$

Cost

1186 003
31,988

-

3 057 464

2 485 199
184,976
(63,262)

-

16,382,591

1,953,152

1 388 731

$

-

170 740

Total

(1,181,907)

-

96 909
6 434
(63
4 845

(5,595,796)
59,268 ·

-

(506 561

648 163

958,700
86,124

-

-

-

143
556
262)
677

102 589 586

-

-

34 192,224
3 017,654
163 262
(1,348,557
(293,633i

2,606,913

44 947
1,074 ,84 1

-

35,504,426

450,551

313,890

648 ,163

67,085,159

-

-

-

3,681,351

-

-

8,921,273

$

507 678
1 828 953

-

-

152178
147 556
1,667,978

20 -50

-

Work in
progress

-

5 403
27 604 884

-

3 040 234
80 492
163,2621

-

109 039

-

Cost
$

Plant&
Equipment

-

(14,930)

-

-

5- 80

20- 50

3 -10

2- 25

Work in
progress : Not
depreciated.

1

1

1

1

1

-

Additions compr ise:

1
Renewals

~2,9 221

2}14,3961

1

2,897,318

Total other additions

3,537,238

Total additions

6,4341556
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Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Each class of property, plant and equipment is stated at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
loss. Items of property, plant and equipment with a total value of less than S5,000 are treated as an expense in the year of acquisition . All other items of property,
plant and equipment are capitalised.
The classes of property, plant and equipment recognised by Council are:
Land and improvements
Buildings - Other
Buildings - Residential
Fixtures and frttings
Infrastructure
- Roads
- Water and sewerage
-Other
Motor vehicles and heavy machinery
Plant and equipment
Work in progress
Acquis ition of assets
Acquisitions of assets are initially recorded at cost Cost is determined as the fair value of the assets given as consideration plus costs incidental to the
acquisition, including freight in, architect's fees and engineering design fees and all other establishment costs.
Property, plant and equipment received in the form of contributions , are recognised as assets and revenues at fair value by Council valuation where that value
exceeds the recognition thresholds for the respective asset class . Fair value is the price that would be received to sell the asset in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
Capital and operating expenditure
Direct labour and materials and an appropriate proportion of overheads incurred in the acquisition or construction of assets are treated as capital expenditure.
Assets under construction are not depreciated until they are completed and commissioned, at which time they are reclassified from work in progress to the
appropriate property, plant and equipment class.
Routine operating maintenance , repair costs and minor renewals to maintain the operational capacity and useful life of the non-current asset is expensed as
incurred, while expenditure that relates to replacement of a major component of an asset to maintain its service potential is capitalised .
Expenditure incurred in accordance with Natural Disaster Relief and Recovery Arrangements on road assets is analysed to determine whether the expenditure is
capital in nature. The analysis of the expenditure requires Council engineers to review the nature and extent of expenditure on a given asset. For example,
expenditure that patches a road is generally maintenance in nature, whereas a kerb to kerb rebuild is treated as capital. Material expenditure that extends the
useful life or renews the serv ice potential of the asset is capitalised.
Valuation
Land and improvements, buildings and infrastructure are measured at fair value, in accordance with AASB 116 Property , Plant and Equipment and AASB 13 Fair
Value Measurement. Fixtures and fittings, motor vehicles and heavy machinery, plant and equipment and work in progress are measured at cost
Non-current physical assets measured at fair value are revalued, where required, so that the carrying amount of each class of asset does not materially differ
from its fair value at the reporting date. This is achieved by engaging independen~ professionally qualified valuers to determine the fair value for each class of
property, plant and equipment assets at least once every five years . This process involves the valuer physically sighting a representative sample of Council
assets across all asset classes and making their own assessments of the condition of the assets at the date of inspection.
In the intervening years, management engage independen~ professionally qualified valuers to perform a "desktop" valuation . A desktop valuation involves
management providing updated information to the valuer regarding additions, deletions and changes in assumptions such as useful life, residual value and
condition rating. The valuer then determines suitab le indices which are applied to each of these asset classes.
Any revaluation increment arising on the revaluation of an asset is credited to the appropriate class of the asset revaluation surplus, except to the extent it
reverses a revaluatio n decrement for the class previously recognised as an expense . A decrease in the carrying amount on revaluation is charged as an expense
to the extent it exceeds the balance, if any , in the revaluation surplus of that asset class.
On revaluation, accumulated depreciation is restated proportionately with the change in the carrying amount of the asset and any change in the estimate of
remaining useful life.
Separately identified components of assets are measured on the same basis as the assets to which they relate.
Details of valuers and methods of valuations are disclosed in Note 14.
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Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Capilal work in progress
The cost of property, plant and equipment being constructed by the Council includes the cost of purchased services, materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of labour overheads.
Depreciation
Land is not depreciated as it has an unlimited useful life. Depreciation on other property, plant and equipment assets is calculated on a straight-line basis so as to
write-off the net cost or revalued amount of each depreciable asset, less its estimated residual value, progressively over its estimated useful life to the Council.
Management believe that the straight-line basis appropriately reflects the pattern of consumption of all Council assets.
Assets are depreciated from the date of acquisition or, in respect of internally constructed assets, from the time an asset is completed and commissioned ready
for use.
Where assets have separately identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these components are assigned useful lives distinct from the
asset to which they relate. Any expenditure that increases the originally assessed capacity or service potential of an asset is capitalised and the new depreciable
amount is depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asset to the Council.
Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
adjusted where necessary to reflect any changes in the pattern of consumption, physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence, or management
intentions . Details of the range of estimated useful lives for each class of asset are shown in the table in this note.
Land under roads
Land under roads acquired before 30 June 2008 is recognised as a non-cur rent asset where the Council holds titie or a financial lease over the asset. Hope Vale
Aboriginal Shire Council currently does not have any such land holdings.
Land under the road network within the Council area that has been dedicated and opened for public use under the Land Act 1994 or the Land Title Act 1994 is
not controlled by Council but is controlled by the State pursuant to the relevant legislation . Therefore this land is not recognised in these financial statements .
Deed of Grant in Trust land
The Council is located on land assigned to it under a Deed of Grant in Trust (DOGIT) under Section 341of the Land Act 1994. It comprises an area of
approximately 63.24 hectares.
The land is administered by the Department of Natural Resources and Mines and the Council has restricted use of this land for the benefit of shire inhabitants .
The DOGIT land has not been taken up in the Council's assets as it cannot be reliably measured .
Asset revaluation surplus
The asset revaluation surplus comprises adjustments relating to changes in va lue of property, plant and equipment that do not result from the use of those
assets . Net incremental changes in the carrying value of classes of non-current assets since their initial recognition are accumulated in the asset revaluation
surplus.
Increases and decreases on revaluation are offset within a class of assets.
Where a class of assets is decreased on revalua tion, that decrease is offset first against the amount remaining in the asset revaluation surplus in respect of that
class. Any excess is treated as an expense.
When an asset is disposed of, the amount reported in surplus in respect of that asset is retained in the asset revaluation surplus and not transferred to retained
surplus . Refer to Note 17 for further derails.
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Fair value measurements

14.A

Recognised fair value measurements
Council measures and recognises the following assets at fair value on a recurring basis :
Property, plant and equipment
- Land and improvements
- Buildings - Other
- Buildings - Residen tial
Infrastructure - Roads
Infrastructure - Water and sewerage
- Infrastructure - Other
Other financial assets

- Financeleases
Non-current assets dassified as held for sale
- Land
Council does not measure any liabilities at fair value on a non-recurring basis.
Council has assets which are not measured at fair value, but for which fair values are disdosed in other notes.
The carrying amounts of trade receivables and trade payables are assumed to approximate their fair values due to their short-term nature (Level 2).
Council also has assets measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis as a result of being reda ssified as assets held for sale. These comprise developed lots
on Millers Bloc'~land ava ilable for immedia te sale as disclosed in note 12. A description of the valuation techniques and the inputs used to determine the fair
value of this land is included below under the heading "Land (level 2)".
In accordance with MSB

13 fair value measurements are categorised on the following basis :

- Fair value based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1)
- Fair value based on inputs that are directly or indirectly observable for the asset or liabilily (level 2)
- Fair value based on unobservable inputs for the asset and liability (level 3)
The following table categorises fair value measurements as either level 2 or level 3 in accordance with MSB 13. Council does not have any assets or liabilities
measured at fair value which meet the criteria for categorisation as level 1.
The fair values of the assets are determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable data . where it is available, and minimise the use of
entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an asset are observable , the asset is included in level 2. If one or more of the significant
inputs is not based on observable market data, the asset is included in level 3. This is the case for Council buildings and infrastructure assets, which are of a
specialist nature for which there is no active market for similar or identical assets. These assets are valued using a combination of observable and unobse rva ble
inputs.
The table presents the Council's assets measured and recognised at fair value at 30 June 2019.

At30 June 2019

Note

Level 2

Level 3

(Significant other observable inputs)

(Significant unobservable inputs )
$

$
2019

Total

2018

2019

2018

2019

2018

Recurring fair value
measurements
Land and improvements

13

3,730,000

3,681,351

3,730,000

3,681,351

Buildings
- Other buildings
- Residential buildings

13

23,269,534

23,687 ,659

23,269,534

23,687,659

13

2,021,267

2,101,133

2,021,267

2,101,133

Infrastructure
-Roads

13

19,102,689

17,815,467

19,102,689

17,815,467

- Wate r and sewerage

13

16,617 ,171

16,382,591

16,617,171

16,382,591

-Other

13

2,142,189

1,953,152

2,142,189

1,953,152

Other financial assets

11

20,539 ,231

17,998,890

20,539,231

17,998,890

83,692,080

79,938,891

87,422,080

83,620,242

3,730,000

3,681,351

Non -recurring fair value
measurements
Land held for sale

12

48,649
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Fair value measurements

(continued)

There were no transfers be~.'leen levels 1 and 2 during the year. nor between levels 2 and 3.
Councirs policy is to recognise transfers in and out of the fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.
14.B

Valuation techniques used to derive fair values for level 2 and level 3 valuations
Council reviews the valuation methodology annually to ensure compliance with the requirements of AASB13 Fair Value Measurement.
Specific valuation techniques

(a)

Land and improvements

used to value Council assets comprise:

(level 2)

Land fair values were determined by independent valuer, Neil Teves AAPI, a qualified valuer of Asset Advance , Cairns. A full comprehensive valuation for land
was performed at 31 December 2017. A desk top valuation has been performed for the year ended 30 June 2019 with an assessment performed to ensure that
material changes in the condition of assets have been captured and recorded. No indexation was recommended for land assets as at 30 June 2019.
From the 2010/11 financial year onwards, a portion of Council land has been set aside to be developed for the construction of housing. Accordi ngly, Council's
freehold land holding contains three elements: stage 1 of the portion set aside for development - the residential estate - which has been fully
developed /subdivide d ; stage 2 of the portion set aside for development-which is currently undeveloped: and the remaining vacant land which is partially
cleared.
The valuer has provided a valuation for stages 1 and 2 of the land set aside for development as well as a valuation for the remaining vacant land. The valuation
methodology takes into account the added value provided to the serviced lots in the land set aside for development arising from the infrastructure which Council
has in place forming or servicing this land.
The land is held under freehold title and the valuation accounts for the inherent physical quaities of any land component, and that any land is developed to its
highest and best potential use.
Land assets comprise separate individual saleable titles which do not have restrictions which wou ld inhibit their sale in the open property market To comply with
AASB 13 such assets have been considered firstly by way of their market value for the whole of the property as the primary valuation concept and secondly by
way of the market value for the saleable land component
Level 2 valuation inputs were used to value land. Sales prices of comparable land are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as property size, location,
topography, and other inherent attributes
{b)

Buildings (level 3)
Building assets have been valued at fair value with a full comprehensive valuation performed at 31 December 2017 by Neil Teves AAPI. A desk top valuation has
been undertaken for the year ended 30 June 2019 to ensure that material changes in the assets values have been captured and recorded.
This valuation comprises the asset's current replacement cost (CRC) less accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost to reflect the already
consumed or expired future economic benefits of the asset. Council first deterrrined the gross cost of replacing the full service potential of the asset and then
adjusted this amount to take account of the expired service potential of the asset.
New building assets since the date of the valuation have been valued by reference to actual costs incurred in establishing such assets. As the Council buildings
are of a specialist nature and there is no active market for the assets , fair value has been determined on the basis of replacement with a new asset having similar
service potential including allowances for preliminaries and professional fees. The gross current values have been derived from reference to cost data for recent
projects and researched costing guides. The net current value of a building asset is the gross current value less accumulated depreciation to reflect the
consumed or expired service potential of the asset.
The un~ rates (labour and materials) and quantities applied to determine the CRC of an asset or asset component were based on a "Greenfield" assumption
meaning that the CRC was deterrrined as the full cost of replacement with a new asset including components that may not need to be replaced. such as
earthworks .
Accumulated depreciation
In determining the level of accumulated depreciation, structures were apportioned into significant components which exhibited different useful lives and based on
that applicable and observed for buildings in the wet tropical area of Queensland. Allowance has been made for the typical asset life cycle and renewal
treatments of each component, residual value at the time the asset is considered to be no longer available for use and the condition of the asset Condition was
assessed taking into account both physical characteristics as well as factors such as functionality, capability , utilisation, physical deterioration and obsolescence .
Indexation considerations
Building asset indices have been calculated by assessing any movement in replacement costs since the previous valuation. Indices were calculated based on
price movements, cost guides and other releva nt publications . as well as Asset Advance's internal database of unit rates. Based on the Trend Chart Data and
other available information. the value~s recommenda tion was that an increase of 3.0% in total is applicable to 30 June 2019. The indexation has been adopted
and applied to building assets.

(c)

Infrastructure

Assets

(level 3)

Infrastructure assets are reported at fair value with a full comprehensive valuation perforrred at 31 December 2017 by Neil Teves AAPI. A desk top valuation has
been undertaken for the year ended 30 June 2019 to ensure that material changes in the assets values have been captured and recorded.

All Council's infrastructure assets were measured at fair value using written down current replacement cost. This valuatio n comprises the asset's current
replacement cost (CRC) less accumulated deprec iation calculated on the basis of such cost to reflect the already consumed or expired future economic benefits
of the asset Council first deterrrined the gross cost of replacing the full service potential of the asse t and then adjusted this amount to take account of the
expired service potential of the asset.
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Fair value measurements (continued)
The un~ rates (labour and materials) and quanlities applied to determine the CRC of an asset or asset component were based on a "Greenfield" assumption
meaning that the CRC was determined as the full cost of replacement with a new asset including components that may not need to be replaced, such as
earthworks. The DRC was determined using methods relevant to the asset class as described under individual asset categories below .
In relation to the assessment of the estimation of the remaining useful life of each structure it is considered that the calculations should be done on the basis of
the overall structure, with individual elemental depreciation figures being acceptable and included where considered appropriate. This is due to the nature of the
structures whereby it is considered that the different identifiable construction elements making up the total structure would not depreciate at the same rate per
annum or have the same overall total life expectancy .
When considering the estimated remaining life of each of the assets, consideration has been given to the construction; present age; condit ion; serviceability;
climate conditions, and present and potential utilisation . Investigations have been made into the lifespan of the infrastructure assets to better understand the
factors influencing sustainable physical, functional and economic asset life-expectancy . This has been combined with general information collated by Asset
Advance over a long period of working within the regional areas of North Queensland.
To accurately assess the value of the infrastructure assets , the valuer carried out an inspection of the assets (where practical), calculated the size of each asset,
and recorded structural details. The general condition , total life expectancy and actual residual life expectancy for the infrastructure assets have also been
established as a result of the inspections carried out.
Reference asset replacement costs for the roads , water and sewerage and other infras'uUcture assets have been compiled by reference to actual costs incurred
for some of the subject assets, for similar asset improvemen ts constructed within the North Queensland Region, and also supported by reference to available
data prepared and provided by construction cost consultants and quantity surveyors. Costs have been indexed to account for the location of the subject
properties being away from the major supply centres or due to being in a different location to some of the other assets recently constructed.
Indexation considerations
For all infrastructure asset categories, indices have been calculated by assessing any movement in replacement costs since the previous valuation . Indices were
calculated based on price movements, cost guides and other relevant publications , as well as Asset Advance's internal database of unit rates. Based on the
Trend Chart Data and other available information, the value~s recommendation was that an increase of3 .0% in total is applicab le to 30 June 2019. The
indexation has been adopted and applied to road, water and sewerage and other infrastructure assets .

(i)

Roads, Drainage and Bridge Network (level 3)
Roads & Bridges Infrastructure

Current replacement cost
The road infrastructure has been categorised into urban and rural roads and then further sub-categorised these into sealed and unsealed roads. All road
segments are componentised into formation, pavement and seal (where appficable). Council assumes that environmental factors such as soil type, climate, and
topography are consistent across each segment. Council also assumes a segment is designed and constructed to the same slandard and uses a consistent
amount of labour and materials.
CRC was calculated by reference to asset linear and area specifications , estimated labour and material inputs, services costs, and overhead allocations. It is
assumed that base raw materials can be sourced from the local quarries where possible. All direct costs were allocated to assets at standard usage quantities
according to recently completed similar projects. Where construct ion is outsourced , CRC was based on the average of completed similar projects over the last
few years. Reference was also made to recent costs for construction works within the district.

Accumulated depreciation
In determining the level of accumulated depreciation , roads were apportioned into significant components which exhibrred different useful lives and based on that
applicable and observed for roads in the wet tropical area of Queensland .
Drainage Infrastructure

Current replacement cost
For Drainage infrastructure and consistent with roads , it is assumed that environmental factors such as soil type, climate and topography are consistent across
each segment and that a segment is designed and constructed to the same standard and uses a consistent amount of labour and materials . Where drainage
assets are located underground, and physical inspection is not possible, the age, size, and type of construction material, together with current and planned
maintenance records are used to determine the fair value at reporting date . Construction estimates were determined on a similar basis to roads .

Accumulated depreciation
In determining the level of accumulated depreciation , drainage assets were disaggregated into significant components which exhibrred different useful lives.
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(ii)

Sewerage and Water Infrastructure

(level 3)

Current replacement cost
Current replacement cost was calculated based on expected replacement costs. In all cases the assets were disaggregated to component level to ensure a
reliable measure of cost and service capacity and deterioration of estimated remaining life.
Certain items of Water and Sewerage Infrastructure wh ich have only recently been constructed were valued directly relative to actua l construction costs with
adjustments made for time-lines as required .
For Water and Sewerage Infrastructure, it is assumed that environmental factors such as soil type, climate and topography are consistent across each segment
and that a segment is designed and constructed to the same standard and uses a consistent amount of labour and materials . Where assets are located
underg round, and phys ical inspection is not possible, the age , size, and type of construction material , together with current and planned maintenance records are
used to determine the fair value at reporting date. Construction estimates were determined on a similar basis to roads.
Asset Advance Valuers cost models were derived from various sources including Asset Advance Valuers database , schedule rates for construction of asset or
similar assets. building price Index tables , recent contract and tender data and Rawlinson's rates for building and construction . Factors taken into account in
determining replacement costs include development factors relating to the area in which development takes place (e.g. rural areas would have little or no
restoration requirements, whereas a high density area would have large amounts of high quality footpaths, road pavements and associated infrastructure that
would require reinstatemen t, and would also require traffic control) and soil factors such as the types of soil or other surface material (e.g. areas where soil is
sandy are difficult to excavate and would require shoring while areas where the soil is generally free of rock would not present any great difficu lty for excavation) .
Valuation unit rates (replacement costs) were increased to allow for project overheads including survey, environmental and investigation costs, engineering
design , planning and project management

Accumulated depreciation
In determining total useful life, remaining life, and accumulated depreciation, assets were generally subj ect to an inspection or an assessment to determine
remaining useful life.
Where site inspections were not conducted (i.e. for passive assets and active assets for which no site inspections were undertaken), the remaining useful life was
calculated on an age basis after taking into consideration current and planned maintenance records .
(iii)

Infrastructure Other (level 3)

Current replacement cost
For Other Infrastructure and consistent with roads , it is assumed that environmenta l factors such as soil type , climate and topography are consistent across each
segment and that a segment is designed and constructed to the same standard and uses a consisten t amount of labour and materials. Where such assets are
located underground, and physical inspection is not possible, the age , size, and type of construction material , together with current and planned maintenance
records are used to determine the fair value at reporting date . Construct ion estimates were determined on a similar basis to roads .

Accumulated depreciation
In determining total useful life , remaining life, and accumulated depreciation, assets were generally subject to an inspection or an assessment to determ ine
remaining useful life. Where site inspections were conducted (i.e. for active assets) . the assets were allocated a condition asses sment, which was used to
estimate remaining useful life.
(d)

Finance leases (leve l 3)
Finance leases are recognised at the present value of the expected future lease payments receivable (fair value). Council's current policy for the valuation of
finance leases is set out in note 12.

14.C Changes in fair value measurements

using significant

unobservable

inputs (level 3)

The changes in level 3 assets with recurring and non recurring fair value measurements are detailed in Note 12 (finance leases) and note 14 (property, plant and
equipment) . There have been no transfers between level 1, 2 or 3 measurements during the year.

14.D Valuation processes
Council's valuation policies and procedures are set by the executive management team which comprises the Chief Executiv e Officer and Director of Finance .
They are reviewed annua lly taking into consideration an analysis of movements in fair value and other relevant information. Counci l's current policy for the
valuation of property, plant and equipment (recurring fair value measurements) is set out in note 13. Non-recurring fair value measurements are made at the
point of reclassification based on advice from a registered valuer .
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15

2019
$

2018
$

Trade and other payables
908,795

Creditors and accruals
Tax payable
Annual leave

319,532
1,228,327

565,831
56,630
301,144
923,606

The following table sets out the liquidity risk in relation to financial liabilities held by the Council.
Council

2019
Trade and other payables
2018
Trade and other payables

Oto 1 year

1 to 5 years

Over 5
years

Total
contractual
cash flows

Carrying
amount

$

s

s

$

$

908,795
908,795

908,795
908,795

908,795
908,795

565,831
565,831

565,831
565.831

565,831
565.831

The outflows in the above table are not expected to occur significantly earlie r and are not expected to be for significantly different
amounts than indicated in the table.
Trade creditors are recognised upon receipt of the goods or services ordered and are measured at the agreed purchase/contract
price net of applicable discounts other than contingent discounts. Amounts owing are unsecured and are generally settled on 30 day
tenms.
A liability for annual leave is recognised. Amounts expected to be settled within 12 months are calculated on current wage and
salary levels and include related employee on-costs. Amounts not expected to be settled within 12 months are calculated on
projected fuiure wage and salary levels and related employee on-costs, and are discounted to present values, if considered
material. As cou ncil does not have an unconditional right to defer this liability beyond 12 months annua l leave is classified as a
current liability. This liability represents an accrued expense and is reported as a payable.

Note
16

2019
$

2018
$

Provisions
Current
Long service leave
Non-current
Landfill restoration
Long service leave

Long service leave
Balance at beginning of financial year
Long service entitlement paid
Long service leave entitlement arising
Balance at end of financial year
Landfill restoration
Balance at beginning of financial year
Initial recogn ition
Increase in provision due to unwinding of discount
Increase (decrease) in provision due to change in discount rate
Balance at end of financial year

269,264
269.264

267,035
267,035

137,931
67,785
205,716

116,772
42,931
159,703

309 ,965
(25,380)
52,464
337,049

311,715
(36,636)
34,887
309,965

116,772
116,772
21,159
137,931
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Provisions

{continued)

Long service leave
A liability for long service leave is measured as the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reporting date. The value of the liability is calculated using current pay rates and projected
future increases in those rates and includes related employee on-costs. The estimates are adjusted for the probability of the
employee remaining in the Council's employment or other associated employment which would result in the Council being required
to meet the liability. Adjustments are then made to allow for the proportion of the benefit earned to date, and the result is discounted
to present value. The interest rates attaching to Commonwealth Government guaranteed securities at the reporting date are used to
discount the estimated future cash outflows to their present value . This liability is reported as a provision.
Where employees have met the prerequisite length of service and council does not have an unconditional right to defer
this liability beyond 12 months, long service leave is classified as a current liability. Otherwise it is classified as non-current.
Landfill restoration provision
A provision is made for the cost of rehabilitation of assets and other future restoration costs where it is probable Council will be
liable, or required , to incur costs on the cessation of use of these facilities .
The provision represents the present value of the anticipated future costs associated with the closure of landfill sites in accordance
with environmental licence conditions . The calculation of this provision requires assumptions such as application of environmental
legislation , site closure dates , available technologies and engineering cost estimates . These uncertainties may result in future actual
expenditure differing from amounts currently provided. Because of the long-term nature of the liability, the most significant
uncertainty in estimat ing the provision is the costs that will be incurred . The provision recognised for landfill sites is reviewed at least
annually and updated based on the facts and circumstances available at the time .
The estimated site closure date is December 2025 and total projected cost of $137 ,931 is expected to be incurred between 2025
and 2054. The figure excludes rehabilitating landfill cells on existing sites that are yet to be constructed or used.

2019
Note
17

$

2018
$

Asset revaluation surplus

Movements in the asset revaluation surplus were
as follows:
Balance at beginning of financial year
Net adjustment to non-current assets at end of period to reflect a change in
Land
Buildings
Infrastructure - roads
Infrastructure - water and sewerage
Infrastructure - other
Balance at end of financial year

Asset revaluation surplus analysis
The closing balance of the asset revaluation surplus comprises the following
asset categories:
Land
Buildings
Motor vehicles/ heavy machinery
Plant and equipment
Infrastructure - roads
Infrastructure - water and sewerage
Infrastructure - other
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44,891,564

38,697,331

736,625
514,293
483 ,995
63,318
46,689,795

(377,000)
2,305,119
2,449,058
1,609,364
207,692
44,891 ,564

3,765,229
24,979 ,281
654 ,323
63 ,229
6,186,194
8,566,930
2,474,610
46,689,796

3,765,229
24,242 ,656
654,323
63,229
5,671,901
8,082,935
2,411,292
44,891,565
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Note
18

2019
$

Commitments for expenditure
Operating leases
Minimum lease payments in relation to non-cancellable operating leases are as
follows :
Within one year
One to five years

Contractual commitments
Contractual commitments at end offinancial year but not recognised in the
financial statements are as follows:
IT management services
Within one year
One to five years

30,560
17,927
48.486

30,560
48,386
78.946

8,795

105,540
8,795
114.335

8,795
19

2018
$

Contingent liabilities
Details and estimates of maximum amounts of contingent liabilit ies are as follows:
Local Government Mutual
The Council is a member of the local government mutual liability self-insurance pool, LGM Queensland. In the event of the pool
being wound up or it is unable to meet its debts as they fall due , the trust deed and rules provide that any accumulated deficit will be
met by the individual pool members in the same proportion as their contribution is to the total pool contributions in respect to any
year that a deficit arises .
As at 30 June 2019 the financ ial statements of the pool reported an accumulated surplus and it is not anticipated any liability will
arise .

20

Superannuation
Council contributes to the LGIAsuper Regional Defined Benefits Fund (the scheme), at the rate of 12% for each permanent
employee who is a defined benefit member. This rate is set in accordance with the LGIAsuper trust deed and may be varied on the
advice of an actuary. The Regional Defined Benefits Fund is a complying superannuation scheme for the purpose of the
Commonwealth Superann uat io n Industry (Supervision ) legislation and is also governed by the Local Government Act 2009 .
The scheme is a defined benefit plan, however Council is not able to account for it as a defined benefit plan in accordance with
AASB119 because LGIAsuper is unable to account for its proportionate share of the defined benefit obligation, plan assets and
costs.
Any amount by which the scheme is over or under funded may affect future benefits and result in a chang e to the contribution rate,
but has not been recognised as an asset or liability of the Council.
Technically Council can be liable to the scheme for a portion of another local governments ' obligations should that local government
be unable to meet them . However the risk of this occurring is extremely low and in accordance with the LGIA super trust deed
changes to council's obligations will only be made on the advice of an actuary .
The last completed actuarial assessment of the scheme was undertaken as at 1 July 2018 . The actuary indicated that the net assets
of the scheme exceeded the vested benefits and the scheme was in a satisfactory financial position as at the valuation date . The
Council is not aware of anything that has happened since that time that indicates the assets of the scheme are not sufficient to meet
the vested benefits, as at the reporting date.
No changes have been made to prescribed emp loyer contribut ions which remain at 12% of employee asset s and there are no
known requirements to change the rate of contributions.
The next actuarial investigation is recommended to be conducted prior to 1 July 2021 .
The most significant risks that may result in LGIAsuper increasing the contribution rate , on the advice of the actuary , are:
Investment risk - The risk that the scheme 's investment returns will be lower than assumed and additional contributions are needed
to fund the shortfall.
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Superannuation

(continued)

Salary growth risk - The risk that wages or salaries will rise more rapidly than assumed, increasing vested benefits to be funded.
There are currently 72 entities contributing to the scheme and any changes in contribution rates would apply equally to all 72
entities. Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire Council made less than 4% of the total contributions to the plan in the 2017-18 financial year.

Note
Superannuation contributions made to the Regional Defined Benefits Fund

5

Total superannuation contributions paid by Council for employees

2019

2018

$

$

514,391

528,157

514,391

528,157

2020
Contributions Council expects to make to the Regional Defined Benefits Fund for 2019-2020
21

$
515,000

Operating lease income
The Council has leased the food store and workshop to operators. Lease agreements are also in place in respect of two residential
properties, units within the Hope Vale Business Precinct and var ious other properties within the community. The minimum lease
receipts in relation to the properties are as follows:
Not later than one year
150,455
103,693
2,029
43,732
One to five years
152.484
147.424
The future lease income in respect of the food store and workshop is based on a five year agreement which entitles Council to six
percent of the store turnover generated per year.

22

Reconciliation of net result for the year to net cash inflow (outflow) from
operating activities
Net result
Non-cash items:
Depreciat ion
(Gain)/loss on reval uatio n of fina nce leases
Impairment of debtors
Investing and development activities:
Net (profit)/loss on disposal of non-current assets
Capital grants and contributions
Loss on asset write off
Loss on transfer of assets via finance lease

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Change in receivables
Change in other assets
Change in payables
Change in other provisions

Net cash inflow from operating activities
23

Events after the reporti ng period
The re were no material disclosing or adjusting events after the balance date .
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6,030.423

2,287,734

3,296,774
(3,190,990)
3,734
109 ,518

3,017,654
618 ,361
23,593
3,659,609

(84,892)
(3,784,874)
1,024,775
712,528
(2,132.463)

{12,000)
(6,751,933)
4,121,373
1,180,790
(1,461,770)

780,572
(55,156)
301,722
48,242
1,075,380

(1,073,963)
(38,490)
(358,151)
115,023
(1,355,581)

5,082,858

3,129,991
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Transactions

with related parties

(a) Transactions

with key management personnel (KMP)

KMP include the Mayor, Councillors , Council's Chief Executive Officer and some executive management. The compensation paid to KMP
for 2018/19 comprises :
2019

2018

s

s

Short-tenm employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
Lona-term benefits
Total

1,137,165
115,777
4,418
1,257,360

1,258,206
108,893
58,983
1,426,082

Detailed remunera tion disclosures are prov ided in the annual report .
(b) Transactions with other related parties

Other related parties include the close family members of KMP and any enttties controlled or jointly controlled by KMP or their close family
members. Close family members include a spouse , child and dependent of a KMP or their spouse .
Details of transactions between Council and other related parties are disclosed below:
Additional
information

Details of Transaction

2019
$

2018
$

Fees and charges charged to entities controlled by key
management personnel

24(b)(i)

8,646

4,960

Rental income charged to close family members of key
management personnel

24(b)(i)

47,231

23,252

Miscellaneous income charged to related parties

24(b)(i}

3,858

43,195

Employee expenses for close family members of key managemen t
24(b}(ii)
personnel

193,728

350 ,101

Purchase of materials and services from entities controlled by key
management personnel and close family members of key
24(b)(iii}
management personn el

171,957

195,218

(i} Income generated from fees and charges, rent and workshop income on services provided to key management personnel , close family
members of KMP and jointly controlled entities of KMP were on an arm's length basis in accordance with Council's schedule offees and
charges.
(ii) All close family members of key management personnel were employed through an arm 's length process. They are paid in accordance
with the Award for the job they perfonm.
The Council employs 87 (2018: 91) staff of whom only 4 (2018: 4) are close family members of key management personnel.
(iii) The Council purchased material and services from close family members and entities controlled by key management personnel. All
purchases were at arm's length and were in the nonmal course of council operations .
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Transactions with related parties (continued)
(cl Outstanding balances
There are no material outstanding balances at the end of the reporting period in relation to transact ions with related parties.

(d) Loans and guarantees to/from related parties
Council does not make loans to or receive loans from related parties. No guarantees have been provided.
(e) Commitments to/from other related parties

. Council does not have any commitment to/from related parties.

(f) Transactions with related parties that have not been disclosed
The majority of the entities and people that are related parties of Council live and operate within the Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire
community. Therefore , on a regular basis ordinary citizen transactions occur between Council and its related parties. The payment by
community residents of utility charges and childcare fees are considered to be an ordinary citizen transaction.
Council has not included these types of transaction in its disclosure as they are made on the same terms and conditions available to the
general public.
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Management Certificate
for the year ended 30 June 2019
These general purpose financ ial statements have been prepared pursuant to sections 176 and 177 of the Local Government Regulation
2012 (the Regulation) and other prescribed requirements .
In accordance with sectio n 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that:

(i)

the prescribed requirements of the Local GovernmentAct 2009 and Local Government Regulation2012 for the establishment and
keeping of accounts have been complied with in all material respects; and

(ii)

the general purpose financial statements, as set out on pages 3 to 32, present a true and fair view, in accordance with Austra lian
Accou nting Standards, of the Council's transactions for the financial year and financial position at the end of the year.

Acting Mayor
Cr June Pearson

Chief Executive Officer
Steven Linnane
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Councillors of Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire Council

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report
Opinion
I have audited the accompanying financial report of Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire Council.
In my opinion, the financial report:
a)

gives a true and fair view of the Council's financial position as at 30 June 2019, and of
its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended

b)

complies with the Local Government Act 2009, the Local Government Regulation 2012
and Australian Accounting Standards.

The financial report comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2019, the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, notes to the financial statements including significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the management certificate given
by the Acting Mayor and the Chief Executive Officer.

Basis for opinion
I conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-Genera/ of Queensland Auditing
Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial report section of my report.
I am independent of the Council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in
Australia. I have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code
and the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing Standards.
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Other information
Other information comprises the information included in Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire Council's
annual report for the year ended 30 June 2019, but does not include the financial report and
my auditor's report thereon. At the date of this auditor's report, the other information was the
current year financial sustainability statement and long-term financial sustainability
statement.
My opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly I do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon . However, as required by the Local
Government Regulation 2012, I have expressed a separate opinion on the current year
financial sustainability statement.

•

• •
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In connection with my audit of the financial report, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial report and my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.
If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this information, I am required to report that fact. I have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Council for the financial report
The Council is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair
view in accordance with the Local Government Act 2009, the Local Government Regulation
2012 and Australian Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as the Council
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
The Council is also responsible for assessing the Council's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless it is intended to abolish the Council or to otherwise cease
operations of the Council.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial report
My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a
whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate , they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
this financial report.
As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also:
•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances , but not for expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Council's internal control.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Council.

•
• •
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•

Conclude on the approp riateness of the Council's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained , whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Council's
ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists , I
am required to draw attention in my auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. I base my
conclusions on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor's report .
However, future events or conditions may cause the Council to cease to continue as a
going concern.

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation .

I communicate with the Council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that I identify during my audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
In accordance with s.40 of the Auditor-General Act 2009, for the year ended 30 June 2019:
a)

I received all the information and explanations I required .

b)

In my opinion , the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and keeping
of accounts were complied with in all material respects.

31 July 2019

Sri Narasimhan
as delegate of the Auditor-General

Queensland Audit Office
Brisbane

Hope Vale Aborigina l Shire Council
Current-year Financial Sustainability
for the year ended 30 June 2019
Measures of Financial Sustainability

How the measure is calculated

Actual

Target

Council's performance at 30 June 2019 against key
financial ratios and targets:
Operating surplus ratio

Net result (excluding capital items)
divided by total operating revenue
(excluding capital items)

20%

Between 0%
and 10%

Asset sustainability ratio

Capital expenditure on the replacement
of assets (renewals) divided by
depreciation expense .

79%

greater than
90%

Net financial liabilities ratio

Total liabilities less current assets
divided by total operating revenue
(excluding capital items)

-115%

not greater
than 60%

Note 1 - Basis of preparation
The current year financial sustainability statement is a special purpose statement prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Local Government Regulation 2012 and the Financial Management (Sustainability) Guideline 2013.
The amounts used to calculate the three reported measures are prepared on an accrual basis and are drawn from the
Council's audited general purpose financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2019 .

Hope Vale Aborigina l Shire Counci l
Current-yea r Financia l Susta inability Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Certificate of Accuracy
for the year ended 30 June 2019

This current-year financial sustainabil ity statement has been prepared pursuant to Section 178 of the Local Government
Regulation 2012 (the Regulation) .

In accordance with Section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that this curren t-year financial sustainability statement has been
accurately calculated .

Acting Mayor
Cr June Pearson

Date:

::SO1_:]__ 1.J.!i_

Chief Execut ive Offi cer
Steven Linnane
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Councillors of Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire Council

Report on the Current Year Financial Sustainability Statement
Opinion
I have audited the accompanying current year financial sustainability statement of Hope Vale
Aboriginal Shire Council for the year ended 30 June 2019 comprising the statement,
explanatory notes, and the certificate of accuracy given by the Acting Mayor and the Chief
Executive Officer.
In accordance with section 212 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, in my opinion , in
all material respects, the current year financial sustainability statement of Hope Vale
Aboriginal Shire Council for the year ended 30 June 2019 has been accurately calculated.

Basis of opinion
I conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing
Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards . My responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
current year financial sustainability statement section of my report.
I am independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the statement in
Australia. I have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code
and the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing Standards.
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Emphasis of matter - basis of accounting
I draw attention to Note 1 which describes the basis of accounting . The current year financial
sustainability statement has been prepared in accordance with the Financial Management
(Sustainability) Guideline 2013 for the purpose of fulfilling the council's reporting
responsibilities under the Local Government Regulation 2012. As a result, the statement
may not be suitable for another purpose. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information
Other information comprises the information included in Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire Council's
annual report for the year ended 30 June 2019, but does not include the current year
financial sustainability statement and my auditor 's report thereon. At the date of this auditor's
report, the other information was the general purpose financial statements and the long-term
financial sustainability statement.
My opinion on the current year financial sustainability statement does not cover the other
information and accordingly I do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
However, as required by the Local Government Regulation 2012, I have expressed a
separate opinion on the general purpose financial report.

•
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In connection with my audit of the financial report, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so , consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial report and my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.
If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this information, I am required to report that fact. I have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the council for the current year financial sustainability statement
The council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the current year
financial sustainability statement in accordance with the Local Government Regulation 2012.
The council's responsibility also includes such internal control as the council determines is
necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the statement that is accurately
calculated and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the current year financial sustainability
statement
My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the current year financial
sustainability statement as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of this statement.
My responsibility does not extend to forming an opinion on the appropriateness or relevance
of the reported ratios , nor on the council 's future sustainability.
As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also:
•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the statement, whether due to
fraud or error , design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks , and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion . The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion , forgery , intentional
omissions , misrepresentations , or the override of internal control.

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the council's internal control.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the council.

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the statement, including the
disclosures, and whether the statement represents the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation .

•
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I communicate with the council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that I identify during my audit.

31 July2019

Sri Narasimhan
as delegate of the Auditor-General

Queensland Audit Office
Brisbane

Hope Vale Aborig inal Shire Council
Long-Term Financial Sustainability
Prepared as at 30 June 2019
Measures of Financ ial Sustainability

Statement

Measure

Target

Actuals at
30 June
2019

30 June
2020

30 June
2021

30 June
2022

30 June
2023

30 June
2024

30 June
2025

30 June
2026

30 Jtme
2027

30 June

30 June

2028

2029

Council

Operating surplus ratio

Asset sustainability ratio

Net financial liabilities ratio

Net result (exclud ing capital
items) divided by total
operating revenue (excluding
capital items}
Capital expendi ture on the
replacement of assets
(renewals} divided by
depreciation expense.

Between 0%

Total liabilities less current
assets divided by total
operating revenu e (excluding
capital items)

not greater

20%

3%

3%

4%

5%

4%

4%

4%

5%

5%

5%

79%

101%

96%

99%

102%

107%

103%

104%

117%

101%

99%

-1 15%

- 113%

-125%

-137%

-152 %

-165%

•177%

-169%

215%

-217%

and 10%

greater than

90%

than 60%

Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire Council's Financial Management Strategy
Council measures revenue and expenditure trends over time as a guide to future requirements and to make decisions about the efficient allocation of resources to ensure the most
effective provision of services. Council ensures that its financial management strategy is prudent and that its long-term financial forecast shows a sound financial position whilst also being
able to meet the commu nity's current and future needs.

-201%

Hope Vale Aborigina l Shire Council
Long-Term Financial Sustainabi lity Statement
Prepared as at 30 June 2019

Certificate of Accuracy
For the long-term financ ial sustainability statement prepared as at 30 June 2019

This long-term financial sustainability statement has been prepared pursuant to Section 178 of the Local
Government Regulation 2012 (the Regulation) .

In accordance with Section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that this long-term financial sustainability
statement has been accurately calcu lated .

Acting Mayor
Cr June Pearson

Chief Executive Officer
Steven Linnane

